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Number of Licences and Statements of —
Particulars of Business (as at 31/3/2023)

22,208

EHEERR
Salesperson’s Licence

18,866 =

HEERIE(EA) R =

Estate Agent’s Licence
(individual)

3,966
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° Estate Agent’s Licence
(company)

7,092
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Number of Examination —
Candidates (2022/23)

™
—1s 4,594

:—/ SERIDERE
Estate Agents
Qualifying Examination

6,240
Salespersons
Qualifying Examination

B ER{E 2R (2022/23 £ )

Number of Complaint Cases (2022/23)

—J{ 254

vk EES
Opened

&)
[P 40 (ETE |
Completed* I

* HoREFEENER  ETERREAEBRIIEN TLEEZE
SREMMER - ARBRFRITDBEENREZETRILAERE -

* Some cases completed in the year were brought forward
from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases
referred to and dealt with by the Disciplinary Committee
and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Complaints ’7

and Enforcement Sections.

& R B (2022/23 F &)
Number of Compliance —
Inspections (2022/23)

1,155

—FERHEHN"

At First-sale Sites*

916

HENEE
At Estate Agency
Shops

1,305

BRANREERRR M D F
EoBENRTE

About Anti-Money
Laundering/Counter-Terrorist
Financing Regulations

1,499

WEES
Online Advertisements

=a

T OBEBRAER  EREERLENE -

* Includes the development sites, sales offices and

vicinity areas.
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Number of Licences Suspended /
Revoked (2022/23)

OLp
AL

Suspended

a1 &

B

Revoked ’7

BHEHEESTHNSE AR (2022/23 F )
Number of Enrolments in Continuing —
Professional Development Activities (2022/23)

2izs
0000

42,809
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About Us

The Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”) is a statutory body
established in November 1997 wunder the Estate Agents
Ordinance (“EAQO”). lts principal functions are to regulate the
practice of the estate agency trade in Hong Kong, promote
integrity and competence within the industry, and facilitate
training for practitioners to ensure a proper standard of conduct.

The EAA organises qualifying examinations, issues licences to
individuals and companies, handles complaints against licensees,
conducts compliance inspections and metes out disciplinary
sanctions to practitioners who have breached the EAO. The EAA
also organises activities for the professional development of the
trade and promotion of consumer education.

The EAA is a self-financing body. It consists of a Chairman, a
Vice-chairman, and not more than 18 ordinary members from
various sectors in the community, including the estate agency
sector. The Chairman, Vice-chairman and every ordinary member
are appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.
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Vision & Mission

Our Vision
The EAA strives for
e excellence in regulating the practice of the estate agency

trade, for the protection of consumers’ interests; and

e supporting the development of an estate agency profession
worthy of the respect of the community.
Our Mission

To regulate the practice of estate agency in Hong Kong, raise
the competence of practitioners and set high standards of ethics
and conduct befitting the trade.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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Chairman’s Message

It is my honour to present my first Chairman’s Message for the
Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”) since taking up Chairmanship in
July 2022.

The past year of 2022/23 has been an especially meaningful and
eventful one as we celebrated the 25" anniversary. Over the past
quarter century, the EAA has established itself as an impartial
and effective regulator promoting high ethical standards of the
estate agency industry while safeguarding the interests of the
public. We look forward to a brighter future in collaboration with
the government and the estate agency industry.

n
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* [# /55 Chairman’s Message

Post-pandemic days

In 2022/23, the property market in Hong Kong faced significant
challenges due to the fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic and
global economic uncertainty. According to government statistics,
the overall number of property transactions recorded a year-on-
year decrease of 25%, totalling 64,888, with a consideration of
$574 billion, which is 31% lower than that in 2021/22. The estate
agency industry was significantly impacted.

Fortunately, from late 2022 we emerged from the shadow of the
COVID-19 pandemic, with the property market showing signs of
a gradual and steady recovery. It may take time for transaction
volumes to return to pre-pandemic levels.

This is an opportune time for the society as well as the estate
agency trade to strengthen their foundations and equip
themselves for a better future. The EAA will continue to provide
guidance to the practitioners while enhancing consumer
education.

Together we Establish, Advocate and Achieve

Notwithstanding the weather on the road ahead as we navigate
ongoing challenges, the EAA remains committed to effective
regulation, high standards of trade practice and protecting public
interests. Our 25" anniversary theme, “Together we Establish,
Advocate and Achieve”, says it all.

As a consistent regulator, the EAA establishes best practices for
the estate agency industry through gatekeeping the entrance to
the industry, issuing practice guidelines, investigating complaints,
and implementing a fair and impartial inquiry hearing system.
At the same time, the EAA advocates for higher professional
standards of the industry by educating practitioners through
the Continuing Professional Development Scheme with various
incentives to encourage their participation in the Scheme. In
addition, we also educate the public through various media tools
on subjects concerning non-local properties and subdivided flats
tenancies.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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Our goal is to achieve a trustworthy and respected professional
estate agency sector that serves consumers and the public better
than in the past. That is why the EAA promoted the concept of
the “BA agent” — meaning a professional estate agent should
have the “5A” qualities, namely Adherence, Ability, Accountability,
Advancement and Affinity. These are the professional qualities
that consumers should look for when appointing an estate agent.
It is not merely a slogan but our goal and we will continue to
spare no effort in enhancing the service level of estate agents to
meet the ever-rising public expectations.

By coming together to establish, advocate for and achieve a
shared vision of professional excellence and social responsibility
with the estate agency trade, | have confidence that the EAA can
overcome any future challenges with the industry.

Serving the community with the industry

Over the vyears, the EAA has been actively promoting the
corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) of the estate agency
industry through various initiatives. Last year was no exception.
Three sessions of the “Estate Agents Elderly Service Day”
were held in September 2022 which engaged trade members
to serve the elderly in Kowloon, the New Territories and Hong
Kong Island respectively. Another CSR activity, namely “Estate
Agents’ Children Service Day”, was held in March 2023 to show
the industry’s care and support to children from underprivileged
families. | am glad to see that the industry’s participation was
overwhelmingly positive making these activities a success. In
the future, we will continue to work closely with the industry
to contribute to the community. By bringing the industry and
community together, we can build a more harmonious society.

Gratitude and welcome

Our work would not have been possible without the dedication
and collaborative spirit of the members of the Board. | would like
to express my heartfelt gratitude to all former Chairs, in particular
Ms Elaine LIU, BBS, JP, the immediate past Chairman, as well as
all present and former members for their invaluable counsel and
support to the EAA over the years.

At the same time, | sincerely welcome our new Board members
as well as our Vice-chairman and committee Chairs. Last but not
least, my special thanks go to the dedication of the administration
under the able leadership of the Chief Executive Officer Ms Ruby
HON, as well as the support of many stakeholders including the
estate agency industry and the Government.
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* [# /55 Chairman’s Message

| look forward to joining hands with all my fellow members, the
administration and the stakeholders to lead the EAA and the
estate agency profession to new heights on the foundation laid
over the past 25 years.

Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
Chairman

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

This year has been one of significant challenges and changes as
| present my tenth report as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”). Despite the shifting pandemic
situation and the economic and social changes, the EAA remains,
as always, dedicated to regulating the estate agency trade,
upholding the trade professionalism and enhancing consumer
education.

EAA’s work resuming to normal after the pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic presented unprecedented challenges
to Hong Kong throughout most of 2022/23, and the EAA was no
exception. We were forced to temporarily close our offices and
implemented special measures in response to the “new normal”
amid the pandemic to sustain our services to the estate agency
trade and the public. Fortunately, with the peak of the pandemic
seeming to be thankfully behind us, and with society and the
economy gradually returning to normal, the EAA was able to
resume normal operations and reopen its offices.

Gatekeeping and regulating the estate agency trade

Under the shadow of the pandemic and as a thermometer of
the property market, there was a decrease in both the number
of qualifying examination candidates and licensee population. In
2022/23, the overall number of examination candidates registered
for the qualifying examinations recorded a decrease of 5% when
compared with the previous year, totalling 12,537.

The number of individual licences also dropped from 41,867 on
30 April 2022 to 41,074 as of 31 March 2023, representing a
decrease of 1.9% compared to the previous year.
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The EAA received fewer complaints in 2022/23, with a total of
254 complaints, a decrease of 11% compared to the previous
year. Despite the pandemic easing in the first quarter of 2023
and the first-hand residential property market becoming more
active, the complaints concerning the sale of first-hand residential
properties also recorded a decrease. The common categories
of complaints included mishandling of provisional agreements
for sale and purchase (or provisional tenancy agreements), and
providing inaccurate or misleading property information.

Furthermore, the EAA conducted a total of 4,875 compliance
inspections, representing a 9% increase compared to the
previous year, to ensure the trade’s compliance. Among these
inspections, 1,155 checks were conducted at first-sale sites and
916 visits were paid to estate agency shops. In addition, due to
the popularity of online advertisements, the EAA increased its
effort on the relevant compliance checking by approximately 36%
from 1,101 to 1,499 in this year.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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(From left) EAA Director of Operations Mr Chan U Keng, Director of Regulatory Affairs and General Counsel Ms Juliet Leung,
Chief Executive Officer Ms Ruby Hon and Director of Services and Professional Development Mr Ivan Wong
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In 2022/23, the EAA revoked a total of 41 licences because
those licensees were no longer eligible to hold a licence. The
EAA also adjudicated 299 non-compliant cases and a total of
311 licensees were disciplined.

Consistent efforts in trade and consumer education

The EAA is committed to enhancing the professionalism of the
estate agency trade and promoting a positive image to the public
through consistent efforts in trade and consumer education.
The EAA continued to promote the Continuing Professional
Development (“CPD”) Scheme to recognise licensees’ continuous
efforts in enhancing their knowledge through participation in the
CPD Scheme. The “Gold” and “Silver” Premium CPD Attainment
Symbol were awarded to licensees who achieved their CPD
attainment targets for three and five consecutive CPD periods
respectively. During the vyear, 393 licensees were awarded
the Silver Symbol, while 53 licensees were awarded the Gold
Symbol.
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At the same time, the EAA also introduced the Silver and Gold
Premium CPD Marks for estate agencies to encourage their
participation in the scheme. Estate agencies would be awarded
a CPD Mark if over 80% of their licensed employees (including
the manager) participated in the CPD Scheme, and those estate
agencies with CPD Marks for three and five consecutive CPD
periods would be awarded a Silver CPD Mark and Gold CPD
Mark respectively. The first batch of awardees for the Premium
CPD Marks will be awarded in September 2023.

Furthermore, the EAA provided updated information and
guidelines for licensees to keep them informed of relevant
government regulations and new market developments. In
response to the commencement of Part IVA of the Landlord and
Tenant (Consolidation) Ordinance which regulate the tenancy
of subdivided units, the EAA produced a promotional leaflet to
further enhance the understanding of estate agents on their roles
and responsibilities. The EAA also co-organised a webinar with
the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data for
licensees to understand doxxing offences and the good practices
of personal data management under the Personal Data (Privacy)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2021.

The EAA also continued its efforts in consumer education to
raise public awareness and knowledge of property transactions
and enable consumers to protect their own interests. To address
the growing concerns over purchasing uncompleted properties
outside of Hong Kong (“UPOH”), the EAA took various initiatives
to remind consumers of the inherent risks of purchasing UPOH,
including promoting animated videos about the risks of purchasing
UPOH with the catchy slogan “To buy or not to buy non-local off-
plan properties? Assess the risks before you buy!”, driving online
promotional campaigns, and organising public seminars.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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25™ Anniversary of the EAA

The year 2022 marked the 25™ anniversary of the enactment of
the Estate Agent Ordinance and the establishment of the EAA.
The 25" anniversary ceremony was held on 7 October 2022.
Over 200 guests from various sectors, including current and
former EAA Board members and Board-appointed members,
Legislative Council members, representatives from government
bureaux and departments, estate agency trade associations,
public bodies, and tertiary and training institutions gathered to
witness this remarkable milestone of the EAA.

The 25" anniversary theme, “Together we Establish, Advocate
and Achieve”, not only reflected the work of the EAA over the
last quarter of a century but also our role in leading the trade to
advance with the times. To mark this silver jubilee anniversary,
the EAA also held a series of initiatives, including engaging the
estate agency trade and giving back to the community. Three
sessions of “Estate Agents Elderly Service Day” were held to
promote corporate social responsibility among the estate agency
trade. A public seminar titled “Retrospect and Prospects of the
Hong Kong Property Market” was also held in July 2022 in which
six industry pioneers and leaders were invited to share their
valuable insights with the public.

Expression of gratitude

This year marked a new composition of the EAA Board
membership. We are deeply grateful for the contribution of our
former Chairman, Ms Elaine LIU, BBS, JP, to her dedicated
leadership and advice to the EAA. We are also excited to
welcome our new Chairman, Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
and our new Board members to lead us forward.
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I would like to sincerely thank our Chairman as well as the
current and previous Board members for their leadership,
invaluable guidance and unfailing support. | also appreciate the
continuous support given by our stakeholders during the difficult
times amid the pandemic, including the Government, other public
bodies and the estate agency trade members.

Last but not least, | must also thank my fellow workmates in
the EAA administration for their selfless dedication. We will
continue to collaborate with all our stakeholders to capitalise
on opportunities and meet challenges that arise in the years to
come.

Ruby HON Yuen-ping
Chief Executive Officer

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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Corporate Governance

y=S I RN ) EFA)%E’]PEE&LA%T&}% To enhance public trust in the Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”)
MNERENDZSAEKE  ETRHMOIEFA# and for the best interests of its stakeholders, the EAA spares
BEE E}Eﬂ({i@&ﬁﬁ{\ﬂﬂ}}—rﬁ’]ﬂ—k no effort in taking corporate governance to a higher level and
ER @#EISEHSES AL - BMEMM reaching a high standard of integrity, impartiality, accountability
FHHHE o and transparency when discharging its duties under the Estate

Agents Ordinance (“EAO”).

HEERESR Governance Framework
HBEREE Governance structure
| [ |
EEREERREREZEY The EAA Board and Standing Committees
s FHEELEEZES e Strategic Development and Management Committee
s KWEZBEE e Disciplinary Committee
o [BREZEE e Licensing Committee
e HELKEAZTESR e Practice and Examination Committee
s EXHRFTEE e Professional Development Committee
[ | | [
EENEE
Supervision and Guidance
BEMRERE L
. il 185 15 i
Accountability and
Checks and Balances
Transparency
HO A Stakeholders e HI:FE BB e The Ombudsman’s Review
(AR~ % (e.g. the public, trade and o E5F * Appeals
FRRBUT) the Government) o HMEREAZ e External Audit
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The EAA Board and composition
The Board

The highest decision-making authority of the EAA is the Board. It
sets the overall strategic direction and policies of the EAA, such
as considering and endorsing its corporate plan, annual work
plan and annual budget. It also supervises and monitors the
performance of the EAA Administration.

Board composition

The constitution of the EAA Board is stipulated by the EAO. The
EAA Board consists of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman, and not
more than 18 ordinary members from different sectors of the
community, including the estate agency sector and the Housing
Bureau. All Board members are determined and appointed for
a fixed term by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. After appointment, new Board members
will be provided with briefings and information packages by the
EAA Administration to familiarise themselves with the work of the
EAA.

Board members come from varied backgrounds with diverse
knowledge, experience and expertise, including the sectors of
estate agency, property development, business, legal, surveying,
finance, accounting, consumer affairs and academia. They bring
to the Board their own wisdom and independent perspectives.
The combination of members from within and outside the estate
agency trade also provides the Board with a more balanced and
holistic view when setting policies and identifying measures. The
names and details of all current Board members are listed in the
next section of this report.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)
of the EAA are held by different persons and their roles are
segregated. The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board
in enforcing the EAO, setting strategies and policies for the EAA,
while the CEO is the head of the EAA Administration responsible
for executing the decisions of the Board and administering
everyday business and affairs of the EAA.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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EE 5K & Board membership

X /& CHAIRMAN

FET L > BBS ' JP
BUHERBHTABA

HHEABEEERKE

ERBMERBEE

REZENG EFEZEEEFE (2016-2022)

EREZEL(BEFHRE) X/E (2016-2022)
EHRZEEE (FE) XK (2007-2013)

EEFNTHRRER EFREZE 2R EF (2013-2019)

Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
Partner, Hastings & Co.

WEREEER

Member, Board of the Ocean Park Corporation

Member, Hong Kong Arts Development Council
Chairman, Environmental Impact Assessment Appeal
Board Panel (2016-2022)

Chairman, Board of Review (Film Censorship) (2016-2022)
Chairman, Appeal Panel (Housing) (2007-2013)

Deputy Chairman, HKSAR Passports Appeal Board
(2013-2019)

2022/234F T}

BlZEE VICE-CHAIRMAN

ZEAELZLT BBS" JP
RAEET

BYMEELFEZESETE

BEEAME LREECRZEETE

B LBELAFRTELHRZESER
REREGXEEEZESEF (22023F58)
ﬁi%%%ﬁ?@&ﬁi;géﬁ
BEREELFEECRE

Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP

Barrister-at-Law

Chairman, Waste Disposal Appeal Board Panel
Chairman, Dumping at Sea Appeal Board Panel
Chairman, Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Appeal Board

Chairman, Security and Guarding Services Industry
Authority (up to May 2023)

Member, Independent Police Complaints Council
Member, Torture Claims Appeal Board



K& MEMBERS

R RAEE IR AEEM
EFRAEM(RIEREMBE)
ERRREYS2EXE

s BERTERYGEEE

o MR LFEEGRFRE

e FHFZEE®(BERIKE

e MEETBEEERKE

o BEZENEZEG (LHER)
Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin,
SC

Senior Counsel (Temple Chambers)

Chairman (Hong Kong Advocacy

Training Council)

e Deputy High Court Judge

e Vice-chairman, Municipal Services
Appeal Board

e Member, Appeal Panel (Housing)

e Member, Property Management
Services Authority

e Member, Law Reform Commission
on Access to Information

% &8 Corporate Governance

EEE T

REERENTEE

. ERNRCREACEFCES

. EANEBREISRLATR
RENEERIR

. EEABTREESEN

. EEAKBEHNAGE

Ir Albert CHENG Ting-ning

Executive Director, Construction

Industry Council

e Director, Hong Kong Green Building
Council

e (Chairman, Advisory Committee,
Faculty of Science and Engineering
(Civil Engineering), Hong Kong Chu
Hai College

e Advisor, University of Hong Kong
Engineering Alumni Association

e Immediate Past President, Hong
Kong Institution of Highways and
Transportation

HiBELE
RERTAFEETHAR
o BRFEREZRERGETE
REERI TIE/ MR E
« LHRERHAAZERESR
« REBRZEMLHZERKA
#

ZBg%8
e HFMERIZEE R (2021-2022)

Mr CHIU Kam-kuen

Chief Executive of Greater China,
Cushman & Wakefield

e Member, Working Group of Advisory
Forum of International Valuation
Standards Council

e Member, Land and Development
Advisory Committee Panel

e Member, The Private Columbaria
Appeal Board

e Member, The Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Infrastructure
Development Advisory Committee

e President, The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors (2021-2022)
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K& MEMBERS

BEfETE

ERABEFEXBARRRRATE

BIEBREA TR &R

s FEARAHMEBEZLZEEZE

s REXEEREFEREES
%8

o FEHEREBIERZESEZE
s BB LFZECIHERF
(2007-2018)

Mr CHOW Wai-shun

Associate Professor and Head,
Department of Professional Legal
Education, The University of Hong
Kong

Consultant, Chu & Lau Solicitors &

Notaries

e Member, Steering Committee on
Rule of Law Education

e Member, Process Review Panel for
the Insurance Authority

e Member, Standing Committee on
Legal Education and Training

e Deputy Chairman, Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance)
(2007-2018)

HERIBEEE D 2022/23F K

RERZ L
EXATEFEEDTSREDNBES
BXEABA

EFRTERE - HENAEZH

aBA

s HREAREZEFENGYR
ZEGIRRESELBELR

s ERAMRRESR

o RIFMEFBAMAIKRESEN
ZEEKE

s HBRUBR

WEM B RRERE

Ms Irene CHU Ngar-yee

Partner, Head of New Economy and
Life Sciences, KPMG China

Partner, Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) Advisory, KPMG
China

e Chair, Finance Committee and
Member of Executive Committee,
World Wide Fund for Nature
Hong Kong

e Director, The Applied Research
Council

e Member, Innovation and
Technology Venture Fund
Advisory Committee, Innovation
and Technology Commission

e Member, Financial Reporting
Review Panel, Financial
Reporting Council

Hez+

ZXEHMEEMERTER(TAESH

BREEEER)(£202356 A8)

e AAMEEELAGREZHEERE
ZBEEKE

o BMHMEERKE

e BMHHERZESCERE

Ms Meena DATWANI

Senior Advisor (Financial Services
Regulatory Affairs), Ernst & Young
(up to June 2023)

e Member, Accreditation and
Exemption Committee, Private
Wealth Management Association

e Board Member, Pathfinders

e Chair of the Governance
Committee, Pathfinders



K& MEMBERS

B EE
BEAKERHAEHMABA
« EAMBAATNES

c TEEHESES

o BHURBELIERLNEES
e

o BHEHMUABLIE LFEES
é%

L4 /ZE&E%?‘
. ﬁéAmﬁ%&%%%ﬁﬁﬂ
ZEEZLE

BgZXEB

Mr Dennis HO Chiu-ping
Partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers

e Director, Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation

e Director, Urban Renewal Fund

e Member, Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Advisory Committee

e Member, Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Appeal Board

e Member, Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform

e  Member, Standing Committee on
Disciplined Services Salaries and
Conditions of Service

% &8 Corporate Governance

RREXHEK  MH - JP

ERETRBEEREHEBRHYR
s MEXEEXEERBIERE
s BREFEMBEWNITEZE®ZE

s BEIMHEEHEREZES
EHEREEAESZESZE

s AAREZECEYREE/NMA
Z8g%8

o T HZHEIEEM/EANKE

D

Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man,

MH, JP

Professor, Department of Building
and Real Estate, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

e \ice-chairperson, The Property
Management Services Authority

e Member, Executive Committee,
Hong Kong Housing Society

e Member, Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts, Securities and
Futures Commission

e Member, Subsidised Housing
Committee, Hong Kong Housing
Authority

e Member, Panel of Advisors, Land
Sharing Pilot Scheme

BEE k4

BEWEEERRATAINA

RITHAR

e BELZTHREAXNBEEXERY
¥LrEREZESTFENREE
FZB8®%8

e EEBEIIPHAEREEITHE
BHRMEEEER

o BRZEJIG B E M E RS 27 4R
ZEEgRZ£ 8 (2017-2022)

L4 ?/%/ij(/ @TXE&? A%QE

. E%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬂA”—ﬂzﬁ
ERNEDEEE

o HEMETHMEZEEE

Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang

Founder and Chief Executive Officer,

Super Land Property Group Limited

e Chairman, Sedentary & Professional
Services Safety & Health Committee
and Member, Publicity Committee,
Occupational Safety & Health Council

e Member, Real Estate Agency,
Industry Consultative Networks,
Employees Retraining Board

e Former Member, Real Estate Services
Training Board, Vocational Training
Council (2017-2022)

e Honorary President, Investment
Institute of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area

e First Vice-chairman, Hong Kong Real
Estate Agencies General Association
and Chairman of its East Kowloon
District Branch

e Member, Hong Kong Institute of Real
Estate Administration
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K& MEMBERS

BEXKX%E - SBS ' JP
EAREmE R

BHRERATERE

. ¢IAE&%% @R m
FlAEZECFEBEERE 128
13EZEEZLE

e NtZEEMKE

e MHAMEAIFEHREZESZEE

e AAERERKEZECZE

o %%ﬂ&ﬁﬂﬁﬁéégﬁé

e EAXBMERREE

Mr Daryl NG Win-kong,
SBS, JP

Deputy Chairman, Sino Group
Chairman, Yeo Hiap Seng Limited

e Member of the Standing Committee,
the 14" Beijing Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC)
and Member of the 12" and 13"
Beijing Municipal Committees of the
CPPCC

e Member, the Culture Commission

e Member, the Council for Carbon
Neutrality and Sustainable
Development

e Member, Council of The University of
Hong Kong

e Member, Court of The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology

e Director, Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong

HERIBEEE D 2022/23F K

EEBRE
THMERR(EE)ERADER
o LELBEBRBEERBEA
c EAEEMEBRMAGE

s EARBRIBXBMEEREER

s REBEIRTERANBEEEZE

s BREXEECERNEIERH
ZE®%8

e RBRMAZBEEZXER

Mr Raymond TSOI Chi-chung

Director and Chairman, Asia

Property Holdings (Hong Kong)

Company Limited

e Member and Convener, Shanxi
Municipal Committees of the
Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference

e President, Hong Kong Chamber of
Professional Property Consultants
Limited

e Chief President, Eastern District
Industries & Commerce Association

e Member, Real Estate Agency,
Industry Consultative Networks,
Employees Retraining Board

e Advisory Member, Employer
Consultative Committee, Hong
Kong College Technology

e Member, District Fire Safety
Committee (Eastern District)

mEFfaRE

EMEEEIRRESALEE

SBERERADNTES

« EBMBEHSARDFAEER

BER

. EBHTALEAPREEES
EEEME

« EBIELATHETHEES

ES
BIER
s BRAFHMEMBRHEEEENKE
o BARAEHMAGEREER

Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi

Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director, Midland Holdings Limited

Executive Director, Legend Upstar
Holdings Limited

e Director and Vice President,
Midland Charitable Foundation
Limited

e Member, Sponsorship and
Development Fund Committee,
Hong Kong Metropolitan University

e Vice-chairman, Executive
Committee, The Association of
Hong Kong Professionals

e Board Member, Hong Kong
PropTech Association
e Fellow Member, The Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants
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BERHELZL

%%%ié%%%?

o HEEFNE
Ip4=|

s EXRSHMEREREITFTRAAGZN
ZEgZ%8

o HE @Nf%ﬁ =8

e IEEERRBEEZEEEE

ERZEFENR

‘D]]D

Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
Chief Executive, Consumer Council

e Ex-officio Member, Management
Committee of the Consumer Legal
Action Fund

e Member, Deposit-taking Companies
Advisory Committee, Hong Kong
Monetary Authority

e Member, Hong Kong Council for
Testing and Certification

e Member, Steering Committee on
Prevention and Control of Non-
communicable Diseases

BASE

BRI R 2 AT B AR AT

» tHZBE(FEIKE

o LHREHE(REM ER

s HEELWMAANEREEERE

s RBEBLHEHELHFZEE

Mr Kevin WONG Ho

Consultant, S.T. Cheng & Co.,
Solicitors

e Member, Appeal Panel (Housing)

e (Chairman, Appeal Tribunal Panel
(Buildings)
Member, Business Facilitation
Advisory Committee

Member, Insurance Appeals
Tribunal

% &8 Corporate Governance

=LY - SBS ' MH ' JP

HEHMEER

FEHITEE(2013-2015)

EHITEEREEEFRERE(2009-2013)

HITEE(1996-2009)

o BANMPEERERESSIFNTES

. iim&@?&:m;é-ﬁéa

o EBPNARBFGERRE

o EBEFREMETHREZESTER
(2005-2014) K& &

o EFHEABEREEEE (2016-2022)

e MEEEBIEHNITEE (2016-2022)

Mr Michael WONG Yick-kam,

SBS, MH, JP

Sun Hung Kai Properties Group

Non-Executive Director (2013-2015)

Non-Executive Director and Group

Principal Advisor (2009-2013)

Executive Director (1996-2009)

e Non-Executive Director, Securities
and Futures Commission

e Member, Land and Development
Advisory Committee

e Member, Board of Trustees of
New Asia College, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong

e Chairman (2005-2014) and Member,
Executive Committee, Hong Kong
Youth Hostels Association

e Chairman, Council of the Hong
Kong Metropolitan University
(2016-2022)

e Non-Executive Director, Urban
Renewal Authority (2016-2022)

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23

29



iy =)

Corporate Governance

K& MEMBERS

HERLE
EREMEBAERA

o LHEHE(EREWIRE

s MBLFKZBEEKE

s EAFRMNTHEERLHFZES

ZB

o HEEMEMNHE

o FIIBEBRMPEBRMEE

e LHERBRKEEZEZIWNHZES
GiE-3=]

Mr Eric WOO Hing-yip

Partner, ONC Lawyers

e (Chairman, Appeal Tribunal Panel
(Buildings)

e Member, Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance)

e Member, HKSAR Passports Appeal
Board

e Panel Arbitrator, The Law Society of
Hong Kong

e Panel Arbitrator, Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration

e Panel Arbitrator, Shanghai

International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission

30 #HEARBESR 2022/23F#

REL%E  MH
SR E(EE)ARATES
e AHEERMEIR

s EEAMERENACEERE

o EBERITHRE NEIRE
ZEeX8

o ARMLHS %i‘“é%

o EFEEZHEAANRKRERZES

s RHEOPBEZEBEEZE

Mr YU Chi-wing, MH

Director, Bauhinia Property (CORP)

Limited

e (Chairman, Tai Po District Residents
Association

e Vice-chairman, Hong Kong
Real Estate Agencies General
Association

e Member, the Sixth Election
Committee of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

e Managing Director, New Territories
General Chamber of Commerce

e Member, Election Committee of the
Hong Kong Deputies to the National
People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China

e  Member, Tai Po South District
Committee

RXEEFRE - JP
EERERER
(EERHERBRAR)

Mr Donald NG Man-kit, JP
Deputy Secretary for Housing

(Representative of Permanent
Secretary for Housing)
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H1ER & RETIRED MEMBERS

BEEX®xz+t  BBS: JP
Ms Elaine LIU, BBS, JP
(£202257H28RH)

(up to 28 July 2022)

MEEHE - JP

Professor Nelson LAM Chi-
yuen, JP

(Z2022F6H30H)

(up to 30 June 2022)

EEHEXLE - MH - JP

Mr Addy WONG Wai-hung,
MH, JP

(£2022F10831R)

(up to 31 October 2022)

wkEERZL  JP
Mrs Peggy CHEUNG
Po-yee, JP

(220226 10H31H)

(up to 31 October 2022)

EREERKEM
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip,
SC

(22022 5H31H)
(up to 31 May 2022)

#®EZt

Ms Helen ZEE
(220226 10H31H)
(up to 31 October 2022)

B Y& %% - SBS, FSDSM,
FSMSM

Mr LAI Man-hin, SBS,
FSDSM, FSMSM

(220226 10H31H)
(up to 31 October 2022)

Rz L

Ms Phoebe TSE Siu-ling
(£2022F10A31H)

(up to 31 October 2022)
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EREE®

EFERUTREAEERZES BE
REEERITRSBBNIIE - ZEEE
SEARL=-_RKE ZBEEMAKE
EHEEREEREE -

EEZRNMAITNRREEFHNEEKNILE
BENERIEN EFER T £
THEERKENEMBAL(ANESER
ZERB)2BEZES FHENPART
tENEE) T -

2022/23F EEEREREECRESR
BE&EHNAT—EZEE -

BESERKERE
RHERREREZEZSE
BIEE -

1. MRAAAREMNFZENRBMUER
BUABRREEREZERES -

2. BAEERNZERZESNS
K THENE/EENERTEM
RE - -NEZHFBZEMERE
EEREFANARBITESE
Beem Rl RESI M DR (IAF) °

3. EEXRAMRARALTHEERW
O BOR RiEER R E - iR
MEEREFRAR/AMETR
REERBEETH

4. BEREEZNFBZE-RFI K
BE|ERNE - ZEIBREE - 8
THXHEERMBMRANEE
BEER RENMBREANE
EEE ITHEZRXEERE
EREZE -

5. BRRMELEERTHBIM
B s TEHBMBER
TRERERREEREERE
5 -

6. HREERESHWREFTHEHESE
SIYMEEREERERIES -

WENRBESRE 2022/23F

Standing Committees

There are five standing committees under the EAA Board to
oversee the various aspects of the EAA’s work. All committees
shall consist of at least three members. All committee members
are appointed by the EAA Board.

The EAA Board may also set up panels and work groups to
deal with particular issues from time to time. When necessary,
the EAA may also appoint other persons (i.e. Board-appointed
members) who are not members of the EAA Board to the
committees, panels or work groups.

Terms of reference of the EAA’s standing committees 2022/23
are listed in the following section.

Terms of reference and membership
Strategic Development and Management Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.  To consider strategic issues of long-term significance, in
preparation for consideration by the Board.

2. To align the work and decisions of the various standing
committees and/or work groups/panels of the EAA with a
view to achieving common goals and resolving divergences
(if any) which may arise in connection with or out of the
carrying out of their respective functions.

3.  To monitor trade and community response to the EAA
regulations, policies and measures and, on such basis,
recommend appropriate actions to the Board and/or the
standing committees for consideration.

4.  To examine issues of major financial significance, in
particular, draft statements of accounts, appointment of
external auditor, staff cost implications, budgetary matters,
long-term financial planning and asset management, and to
make recommendations to the Board for consideration.

5.  To review and endorse the annual work plan and budget
prepared by the Administration and to recommend the same
to the Board for consideration.

6. To devise guidelines for and make recommendations to the
Board on the investment of the EAA monies.



10.

11.

12.

MEBENANEREEZE -
LEFBRE  HMARREER
UhEERBET (BEITHRARM
MED) MBS RS - W AS
ZRXEERESTRER

BERMMERGIRENEAL G
ANBE AR ANERBERM
RFEHIRT

REEEREIFEMNETR ERAK
BETRAARMAENTHERR
NEFRRER ERARH &
TR RIFTSKEBRER - S H
MEEAEREE  UALBEER
BHHRRBEERNRE A B
REREREEREZTRES -

THREESETREIIRY —(E
HEEGNEBEAKH ITENE "
NATEESTRMEBIRN IR
ER)EANTEEAR  RERR
EEREXRERE -

HMITHEEREEREEEEDN
T~

WRSFE EESTEHER
REAENERERK,REXEE
RS -

10.

11.

12.

% &8 Corporate Governance

To examine issues of major significance in human resources
management, in particular, the pay structure, remuneration
and allowance policies and terms and conditions of
employment of the EAA employees (including the CEO and
Directors), and to make recommendations to the Board for
consideration.

To review and approve establishment structure,
reorganisation, manpower planning and development of
human resources policies and procedures.

At the direction of the Chairman, to review and evaluate
the performance of the CEO and Directors for the purpose
of confirmation of appointment, extension of probation,
promotion, dismissal, termination or renewal of employment
or other employment related issues and the granting of any
performance-linked awards, and to make recommendations
to the Board for consideration.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for
approval as appropriate.

To perform such other tasks as the Board may from time to
time delegate.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to
the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as
and when the Committee considers necessary.

A
Membership:

F & Chairman:

EE2F4L4E BBS JP

Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP

&|F & Vice-chairman:

BHELT BBS: JP

Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP

B & Members:

BEERE
g ¢ o

BRBXL

FERFEMERIHERRK

FFENXEIE - MH - JP

Mr CHOW Wai-shun

Ms Meena DATWANI

Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP

Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han

Permanent Secretary for Housing or her representative
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KEZEEE
B1EEE -

Disciplinary Committee

Terms of Reference:

34

L RIMIESIFMEF  BRAR

FRE
BB IR R AR -

MENEBERE,/ HBEEXEBRN
ARTS

WENRBESRE 2022/23F

1.

To draw up guidelines and procedures to ensure
consistency and fairness in handling disciplinary cases.

CEX EZERNERBEERENZE 2. To receive, consider and inquire into complaints as
WwWEELEEE  RBECGLERIEEM) mentioned in section 29(1) of the EAO and submissions
FE20(E BT E B9 R 5F & (b = R 18 by the CEO as mentioned in section 29(2) of the EAO that
171 B9 MITH AR IELEN R are referred by the EAA to the Committee, and to conduct
M WHEZEZSERFMN2 % such inquiry as the Committee may think fit after having
EITEHRASBEAOTA - considered such complaints and submissions.

. T%%&ﬁ%}”ﬁ&% b 3 2= R 3B 5k & 3. To receive and inquire into complaints lodged against
¥ENKRF ROEBEERTE licensed estate agents or salespersons for breaches of the
BEXiSi s E’]({?D SFSFAY B ER Code of Ethics, practice circulars or guidelines issued to
£ oiE5| - the trade from time to time by the EAA.

. EHETRBECGEERIBIZMN)E 4. To consider the reports and recommendations of the
2BIEEZE R FAEERSHIE & investigator appointed by the EAA under section 28 of
&= (BB FEosiEAE /N BEN) - £ the EAO, with referral by the Section 28 Investigation
E‘E?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ?‘é%ﬁﬁ%éﬂiiﬁﬁL?(iﬁ Committee, to look into suspected and alleged breaches
EREBEFVEXHEZR  #TER or non-compliance of the provisions of the EAO and to
BABRE - conduct such inquiry as the Committee may think fit after

having considered such reports and recommendations.

BB ODENR IE &) E301& 8 T 2 5. To exercise any of the disciplinary powers provided
WERHHEE TEERZABEORE under section 30 of the EAO as the Committee considers
7 e appropriate.

. EERBERNEZESRAEE NIE 6. To attach to licences such conditions as the Committee
s may consider appropriate.

BRI EBEAEEEeEENTREE 7. To refer from time to time cases of malpractice or
FrRIKWFRAETESTHMBEZE = - complaints considered by the Committee to other
AESIET R/ SHIEETHE - B85k committees for formulation and/or revision of policies,
RO - HMEAERMATEERZ practice or regulations for better discharge of the EAA’s
Bae o functions.

MRS EeXFEHES K —FER 8. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
; EeRBAKE TIENA" LH by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
TZEEXIRAMZRMNIE  BE the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
NEAWTEER  REHRESRE Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
RREH - task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for

approval as appropriate.

. INREBEE L E@TE HE A 9. To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to

the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as
and when the Committee considers necessary.
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HE

Membership:

+ /% Chairman: ARExLE Mr CHOW Wai-shun
SRR AEIRKEA Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin, SC
EE=ETRAN Ir Albert CHENG Ting-ning
FHERAE ST A Mr CHIU Kam-kuen
REEZ T Ms Irene CHU Ngar-yee
BT 4 Mr Dennis HO Chiu-ping

KB Members: EKFESE 0 SBS ¢ JP Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP
EEBESLA Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang
BEEBEA Mr Raymond TSOI Chi-chung
E=Eala L Ms Angela WONG Ching-vyi
=ALE Mr Kevin WONG Ho

B|ZEE S E - SBS C MH » JP
PEESLE

Mr Michael WONG Yick-kam, SBS, MH, JP
Mr Eric WOO Hing-yip

ZEKE
Board-appointed
Members:

AT
ARBE L £
BB £
FIRH A
FRELL
REREE
BEREE
LI L
REEFT L

Mr BUT Sun-wai

Ms Sabrina HO Shuk-ying
Ms Sandia LAU Ying-lam
Mr Eric LEE Chun-ming
Ms Eva LEE

Mr Luke NG Kai-man

Mr Philip POON Chi-ho
Ms Joanna TSE Hoi-lam
Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
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Licensing Committee

Terms of Reference:

10.

To consider and recommend licensing requirements for
estate agents and salespersons.

To consider and recommend the criteria for exemption
from the licensing requirements for any particular class of
persons.

To instruct the EAA Administration to process applications
for licences/statements of particulars of business (“SPOBs”)
and to grant or renew such licences/SPOBs to applicants
meeting the licensing requirements.

To consider and if thought appropriate, to approve or
refuse applications for licences/SPOBs brought before the
Committee.

To exercise and perform any and such of the EAA’s
functions and powers under sections 17, 23, 24, 25 and 27
of the EAO and section 9 of the Estate Agents (Licensing)
Regulation.

To set policies relating to licensing matters.

To review and make recommendations on the scale of
licence fees and charges for services provided by the EAA.

To consider and design the relevant forms and related
documents pertaining to licensing matters.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for
approval as appropriate.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to
the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as
and when the Committee considers necessary.
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HE
Membership:
EJ% Chairman: AEXHE - MH - JP Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
RREERAER Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin, SC
Bl FEE TA2AD Ir Albert CHENG Ting-ning
B Mr CHIU Kam-kuen
Al B 5 A Mr Dennis HO Chiu-ping
Bk 8 Members: EiEEEL Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang
BEREE Mr Raymond TSOI Chi-chung
HmEA T Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi
HAEREEE Mr Eric WOO Hing-vyip
RELLE - MH Mr YU Chi-wing, MH
EERE BB E Mr Eddie LOU Kuong-fai
. EBEEBFLLTCHBEEZEERE) Ms Vera TAM Sau-ngor (representative of
Board-appointed .
Mermbers: Consumer Council)
' RIEF L Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
HEREZHZEE Practice and Examination Committee
B E Terms of Reference:
1. 5] - R REFTRTTH - HE 1. To draw up, review and revise code(s) of ethics governing

WERBITEMNBRTRAZTA

the conduct and practice of the estate agency trade.

o wt b 2 IR R B P 81 A B8 3 2.  To review and make recommendations on the regulations

EREMNINEREENRD I under the EAO relating to the practice and operation of

UL R R - estate agents.

THEZERBRIIMEREITEN 3. To consider and review practices within the trade and

HMEFE WHIFTRMHRERM prepare or consider practice circulars or other guidelines on

EREBIEOBERSEHIES - various aspects of estate agency work from time to time.

ERERETUERBIEMN & 4. To monitor compliance of the EAO and its subsidiary

EWBEG - (BT - B legislations, code(s) of ethics, practice circulars or other

BENHEMIES MBI I AR guidelines; and to liaise with the trade on ways to improve

¥R HRAMREBAREKER the standard of practice and quality of service.

FRIBEEM X -

FleTERBMNEEXBERZER 5. To determine the syllabi and fees for the qualifying

WEEREMA - examinations for estate agents and salespersons.

REBEFNMITIESETER - 6. To set the parameters for the administration of the qualifying
examinations.

EREREANAERTEHAE 7. To oversee and give direction to the EAA Administration

%EL&%W%@Q'JE’J B ORTE
I 3 Uk 17 BE R 1T IR &P EJ?";J“M*E
%I

in the setting and moderation of examination questions
and determination of penalties for breaches of examination
regulations by candidates.
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FEREEWERIERSR

8. M FRETERERRES @I 8. To review and determine the pass marks and commendation
D (WEBR)WNEBSEBENER Y marks for the qualifying examinations and, where
%ﬁ( ° appropriate, those for each part thereof.

9. T HEEZEeFXFFEHESKY — @ 9. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
HEEeKEMAKKN ITIENA - by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
L#iTEES IF‘FE?E&E@I{’E the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
=N Zﬂﬁ’jlﬁz i3 B [ Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
é%%h o task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for

approval as appropriate.

10, WRBEE mETE@THE HE 10. To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to
BRI fE NIERUE 2 &/j BE¥EE the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as
B iR - and when the Committee considers necessary.

HE
Membership:
F % Chairman: BHELL  BBS - JP Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP
BlEJE Vice-chairman:  &REML L Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
iR ST E Mr CHIU Kam-kuen
KIEFEZ LT Ms Irene CHU Ngar-yee
FKHIEAE - SBS * JP Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP
EEBEEA Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang
BEREE Mr Raymond TSOI Chi-chung
VN . Ui
KB Members: fé?\u 7w+t Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi
=M S A Mr Kevin WONG Ho
WA - SBS  MH ¢ JP Mr Michael WONG Yick-kam, SBS, MH, JP
B & Mr Eric WOO Hing-yip
REEEFE - MH Mr YU Chi-wing, MH

Permanent Secretary for Housing or her
representative

ZEKE fAEEZER2RD - MH + JP Sr Vincent HO Kui-yip, MH, JP

Board-appointed BB B Mr Victor LAl Kin-fai

Members: TR SR & Mr Eric LEE Chun-ming
WEREBEESR 2022/23F ik



% &8 Corporate Governance

RITEEBEMENERETE
HERR,/REXEER -

BEEpREFESE Professional Development Committee
BEdE - Terms of Reference:

WHRERNEBIEZEE  WHRFE 1. To examine the training needs and design appropriate

EEHIEINERE UWIRFAEFE AD training programmes to raise the competence of licensees.

K -

e (R EE ISR | BTT - 2. To oversee the implementation of the Continuing

B Professional Development (“CPD”) Scheme including —

a. THBRFTE/MES - #FE a. conducting periodic reviews on its focus, scope and
MESK requirements;

b. FIVHEEREEXREER b. determining guidelines for assigning Compliance and
PHREAZEER B EEHNIE Effective Management and All-round Advancement
3l activities;

c. EMBEFTEEEIHNEH c. approving CPD activity providers and evaluating CPD
Wt M B E R EEE) activities;

d BHEMEXRMITENSES d. adopting appropriate CPD activities of other
MIEEEEEEEEMNAE professions and trades into the CPD Scheme of the
ERMISESEEBE K EAA; and

e, BEARIEEEZEEIETZIAK e. monitoring the effectiveness of the CPD Scheme and
HoWREERES BRER making recommendations to the Board as appropriate.
BE R -

MEESRTEIEHER W E 3. To advise on professional exchange activities and monitor

RIMERBEZERNIEEEK G AT the administration of scheme(s) relating to reciprocal

2 W 1T © recognition of professional qualifications for the estate

agency trade.

TEIZZEeXFEES K —E 4. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed

HEZEeikEBHEAKN TE/NE - by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of

D ITEEEXTEMES IR IT{E the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee

/DA TIEE R il m Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the

EERIRKES task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for

approval as appropriate.

MR EETE REESTERIT 5. To obtain such legal and/or expert advice as the Committee

may consider necessary for or in relation to the proper
discharge and exercise of the Committee’s functions and
powers.
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HKE
Membership:
EJE Chairman: ezt Ms Meena DATWANI
SRR AEIRKEA Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin, SC
Bl E TAZAD Ir Albert CHEUNG Ting-ning
REEZ T Ms Irene CHU Ngar-yee
Al EB S 5 A Mr Dennis HO Chiu-ping
AL SBS 0 P Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP
KB Members: EIEBSLA Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang
BEREE Mr Raymond TSOI Chi-chung
=LA Mr Kevin WONG Ho
HZERE - SBS MH - JP Mr Michael WONG Yick-kam, SBS, MH, JP
REELE - MH Mr YU Chi-wing, MH
FEEREAMWERIHERE Permanent Secretary for Housing or her
representative
FERERL Dr Lennon H.T. CHOY
kL Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
ZEKE TEHAIE L - MH Dr Lawrance WONG Dun-king, MH
Board-appointed \BRELT(BEIRBREK) Ms Venus WONG Szee Ving (representative
Members: of Vocational Training Council)
Eg2Eu+(BEHEIIRKK) Ms YIP Kit-wan (representative of Employees
Retraining Board)
ERLELRE Meetings attendance

REMEREGH) EERSEN
EEANBE Jﬁﬁ”k)%*ﬁﬂﬂi,\/K%lEl’]
*ﬁﬁ(@?ﬁifﬁa'Jif( umaﬁ%/\
B)) HEEENEERKERE —
T o

WEREBEESR 2022/23F ik

According to the EAO, the quorum for a meeting of the EAA shall
be at least half of the members of the EAA for the time being
(including the Chairman and the Vice-chairman whether present
or not). Each member of the EAA present at a meeting thereof
shall have a vote.
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The number of meetings, average attendance rates and number
of papers considered by the EAA Board and standing committees

W in 2022/23 were as follows:
2REAE T EE REZJMEE
Number of Average Number of papers
meetings held attendance rate* considered**
B/
2 77% 20

The EAA Board °

FRERNREEZESY

Strategic Development and Management 1 86% 7
Committee

% 4 = = g***

a,é,;,ﬁ : 1 62.5% 3
Disciplinary Committee***

BEEe

Hé-'—im\;,/g\ = . 5 77% 10
Licensing Committee

HEREAEZE® . . ; 65.5% 3
Practice and Examination Committee

E 3 = = *okokk

EXBRRELEE® ; . o

Professional Development Committee™**

HEXOREERXARESES

= BERSH RS REB -

= BRHESR O LEZECNETRKE
MEEREZEERBHIBTEREITT
UG AL RN W RERNIFTERALE
HHER MZZEEMV LW/ NESE
FLBBTHITRAEMLETMNER
H)28417 SLAHF -

S CE TR ETEEETE/ AR

AHAIHMWAEERNFEE X E

f%EJr%J MR FES o

Hok

Hkkk

The attendance of committees includes Board members and Board-
appointed members.

Including papers considered at the meetings and through circulation.

In addition to attendance at meetings, Board members and Board-
appointed members of the Disciplinary Committee held inquiry hearings
on 303 cases in 69 sessions to adjudicate the suspected non-
compliances of licensees; while the Preliminary Scrutiny Panel of the
Committee considered and approved 284 papers submitted by the CEO
with respect to inquiry hearings.

The CPD endorsement panel of the Committee endorsed a total of 162
training activities meriting adoption into the EAA’s CPD Scheme.
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Integrity and Impartiality

Standard of conduct

The EAA is fully committed to the principles of honesty, integrity
and fair play in the delivery of its services to the public.

The EAA is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance. All Board members and employees of the EAA are
regarded as “public servants” for the purpose of that ordinance.

As a statutory body tasked with regulating the practice of the
estate agency trade in Hong Kong, the EAA strives to maintain
the highest possible level of quality service and ethical standards.
To promote and maintain public confidence, all EAA staff are
required to have a high standard of integrity and conduct. They
are required to comply with the EAA’s Code of Conduct which
sets out in detail the basic standards of conduct in different
aspects, including confidentiality, conflicts of interest and
acceptance of advantages. All EAA staff are briefed on the Code
of Conduct upon their commencement of duty at the EAA, and
may access the document easily at any time through the EAA’s
intranet.

The post-employment sanitisation period for the CEO, Directors,
Senior Managers and Managers are respectively one year, six
months, two months and two months. There is also a prohibition
on all staff, including the CEO and Directors, to take the estate
agents or salespersons qualifying examinations during service
and within two months after service.
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Disclosure of interest

To foster public confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the
EAA, the EAA adopts a two-tier reporting system on declaration
of interest as a safeguard against potential conflict of interest.
All Board members and Board-appointed members are required
to register their interests with the EAA upon their appointment
to membership and annually thereafter. They are also required
to declare their interests at all EAA meetings in any subject
and matter under consideration by the EAA, and any conflict of
interest or potential conflict of interest which they may have with
the affairs of the EAA. The register of interests is available for
public inspection.

In addition, all EAA staff also have to declare annually if they
have any direct or indirect financial interest in any company or
organisation which competes with the EAA, which the EAA has
business dealings with, or which is being regulated by the EAA.

Regarding interests in land and property, all EAA Board members
and Board-appointed members are required to declare any
such beneficial interests they have in or outside Hong Kong,
without disclosing details of the addresses of such land or
property. Registrable interests include land or property owned
by a member in his/her name or held indirectly through another
company or person. It also includes land or property which a
member has a right over its disposition or has any pecuniary
interest deriving from it. The managerial staff of the EAA
Administration are also required to follow a similar requirement in
declaring their interests in land and property.
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Accountability and Transparency

The EAA considers accountability one of the fundamental pillars
of corporate governance and has built its corporate structure and
management culture based on this concept. Under the current
structure, the Board is accountable for the overall performance of
the EAA. The EAA Administration is responsible for managing the
EAA’s everyday business and is accountable to the Board for its
performance.

Corporate Authorisation Manual

To maintain a high standard of accountability, a Corporate
Authorisation Manual was formulated for the EAA to provide
corporate management authority guidelines. All members of the
EAA, standing committees, work groups/panels and all staff must
act in compliance with the spirit and intent of the Corporate
Authorisation Manual and within the scope of authorities therein
conferred.

Access to information

To facilitate the public to access information about the EAA, the
EAA has designated the Director of Services and Professional
Development as the Access to Information Officer who is
responsible for ensuring that requests for access to information
under the EAA’s Code on Access to Information are properly
dealt with in accordance with specific procedures.

EEREBEREY  FEHR ZENARHEE
B EERNNYRPHETRBARE  MAREN
EHEERNITIEREHRNE -

The public are kept abreast of the EAA’s work and
initiatives through various communication channels,
such as media events, press releases, publicity and
public education activities, EAA publications and its
website.
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FE

Year

REHE
No of
Applications

ﬁEl AR M :1
Application
Outcome

Information Requested

2022/23

11

RRER

All accepted

e BRI K

Copies of licences

FR AR R AR B AR R O R AR

Forms submitted for licence applications

P &7 1R TR 5 0 <2 1) B2 R 78 BA S A
Documentary proofs of academic qualifications
submitted for licence applications

o 5 i LB A 3 1 (AR

Personal data submitted for licence application

2021/22

20

2EES
All accepted

EEEIRS

Copies of licences

R IR R R )R AR

Forms submitted for licence applications

R RRRER 2R FZ A
Documentary proofs of academic qualifications
submitted for licence applications

R &5 b BRI IR X 1) B A B R

Personal data submitted for licence application

DEST PN duel= R EE

Letter to a licensee

2020/21

17

2 HEE

All accepted

ﬁéﬁ ':{EEIJZ’K

Copies of licences

A5 R PR I IR R R R AR

Forms submitted for licence applications

P 5 42 6 B XX A M A

Personal data submitted for licence application

B 55 b AR IR X ) 2 R B B X
Documentary proofs of academic qualifications
submitted for licence application
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The transparency of the EAA’s work is attained through the
information published at its website and is further enhanced by
furnishing an Annual Report to the Secretary for Housing, copies
of which have to be laid before the Legislative Council and are
made available to the public at the EAA’s website.

Members of the public are also kept abreast of the EAA’s work
and initiatives through various communication channels, such
as media events, press releases, publicity and public education
activities, EAA publications and its website.

Publication of inquiry hearing results

The EAA publishes inquiry hearing results on its website to
facilitate members of the public to ascertain the results of
the inquiry hearings conducted by the Disciplinary Committee
pursuant to powers under the EAO on disciplinary matters
concerning licensees or ex-licensees, and to educate both the
estate agency trade and the public.

The Disciplinary Committee adjudicated 299 inquiry hearing cases
in 2022/23 and the EAA has published the inquiry hearing results
of these cases on its webpage titled “Recent Inquiry Hearing
Results”.

The EAA also publishes the reasons for disciplinary decisions on
its website. For details, please refer to the sub-section headed
“Publication of reasons for the decisions of inquiry hearings”
under the section headed “Proactive in Law Enforcement”.

Independent Checks and Balances

External audit

The EAA’s financial statements are subject to audit by an
external auditor. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu continued to be the
EAA’s external auditor in the financial year of 2022/23.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent
assurance to the Board that the annual financial statements of
the EAA are fairly stated. The appointment of the EAA’s external
auditor is subject to the approval of the Secretary for Housing.
The Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements of
2022/23 audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are included in
pages 110 to 144.
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Appeals

Under the EAO, licensees or licence applicants may appeal
against the EAA’s decisions concerning refusal to grant or renew
a licence, or its disciplinary sanctions by writing to the Secretary
for Housing.

The Secretary for Housing is required to appoint a panel of
persons for the purpose of hearing such appeals. The appeals
are determined by a tribunal, the members of which are
appointed by the Chairman of the panel from members of the
panel.

The Ombudsman’s review

The EAA came under the jurisdiction of the Ombudsman on 2
July 2010. In the year of 2022/23, three inquiries were received
from the Ombudsman. All inquiries were unsubstantiated and
closed, with recommendations to improve communication with
the complainant.

Performance Pledges

As a responsible public body, the EAA has a set of performance
pledges for its services to the public and the attainment level
of the pledges is reviewed regularly. All sections of the EAA
Administration are responsible for maintaining effective internal
controls to monitor the achievement of their pledges to the
public.

2022/23F BT H P RBEZFR R
Achievement of the Performance Pledges in 2022/23
=k
Enquiries
PR 7% 38 51 BE EER
Service type Standard Results
EEEH
Response to enquiries
s FEFSHREFTAL) TEIERA' 100%

Telephone enquiries (voice mail messages)

Within 1 working day'

e EMHEM
Written enquiries

7TETERA®

99.74%
Within 7 working days? °

! EERMNTIERRESR —ZER-

¢ WEERET —ETERMABTE -

The EAA’s working days are from Monday to Friday.

From the next working day following the receipt of the enquiry.
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ERER

Qualifying Examinations

A A A A A

BR % %8 5l Eig: EER
Service type Standard Results
BHKERME® ZHENI4EITIERA 100%
Issue result slips® Within 14 working days after the examination ’
e B
Licensing
BR % 28 Bl g4 EER
Service type Standard Results
BRIBFIEREAR W B BB I10ETERR!
. o s . el 99.98%
Process new licence applications Within 10 working days for new applications
o HEEEFEN20EIER
PIE A I e J‘I&%J]EH@$ m%ﬂ’] EIERA
) L Within 20 working days for renewal 100%
Process renewal licence applications o
applications
R T PR EUE R R BRI R E
BT %éhé‘& H?Hxﬁﬁ%% F E{H’JEE A 1OETERR®
Refund of application fees for rejected/ L ) g 100%
L Within 10 working days
cancelled applications
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examinations.

Issued by the Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge of the
Vocational Training Council, authorised by the EAA to administer the

From the next working day following the receipt of an application,

the required fee and documents to the day the licence/statement of
particulars of business is issued (i.e. the day the licence is available
for collection). This service target does not apply to applications which
require the EAA’s Licensing Committee to determine whether the
applicant fulfills the “fit and proper” requirement and other licensing
requirements as prescribed under the EAO. A longer duration is needed
for such cases for the EAA to make enquiries and for the applicant
or any third party (such as the Official Receiver’s Office, trustees-in-
bankruptcy or the Police) to respond before the EAA approves or rejects
the application.

From the next day after an application is cancelled or rejected; for
bankruptcy cases, from the next day following the receipt of instructions
from the Official Receiver’s Office or the trustee-in-bankruptcy.
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Complaints, Enforcement and Disciplinary Proceedings

PR % %8 51 B EER
Service type Standard Results
TSR 2 H2 3 A B B TER AR S5EIERA B
0
Acknowledge receipt of written complaints Within 5 working days
| E’%E 7 L % Z
HﬁuJ.E%’uJ EY#&W&DEM’% @@?E 15 ETHEERA
Provide a written response to complainants upon - ) 99.32%
. . . Within 15 working days
receipt of sufficient supporting documents

ETEREERAGERNTRERTMEMAR), NEERBEAMEARNERERCEARRERE

[EE - WHPTEEREETHREES ° |

H

)1

Conduct the first disciplinary inquiry hearing for Normal Cases and Complex Cases/Publish admitted breach(es) on EAA

website for Fast Track Cases'
[Note: Not all cases will proceed to disciplinary actions.]?

REREZ
(BEESFAETMXAESEEANEZR)
Fast Track Cases

(Cases dealt with under the New Scheme for
Disciplinary Cases and involving no witnesses)

61EAR°
Within 6 calendar months®

75%"*
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¢ —FREME  49FREEERR103FRELH !
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B/ AREBEERT ()VERANEZR
RERFEETZRMEERGMERTENH :
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HHEAE FHEBELNBERS RS
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The EAA’s investigation generally focuses on the compliance of the
EAO and its subsidiary legislation and the conduct of estate agents and
salespersons in their estate agency practice. If a case is related to any
parallel investigation of criminal offence or non-compliance with any law
or regulation by other regulatory bodies, or if the case is related to any
parallel civil court action, this performance pledge is inapplicable.

A written notification of whether the case will be recommended for
disciplinary action will be given to the complainant(s) and the licensee(s)
concerned within 3 calendar months for Fast Track Cases, within 6
calendar months for Normal Cases, or within 9 calendar months for
Complex Cases.

Commences from the date of the EAA’s written response to
complainant(s) upon the receipt of sufficient supporting documents
from them or (if there is no complainant) from the date of the EAA’s
first allegation letter to licensee(s) concerned to the date of the first
disciplinary inquiry hearing for cases proceeding to an inquiry hearing
for Normal Cases and Complex Cases or to the publication date of
admitted breach(es) on EAA’s website for Fast Track Cases.

One fast track case, 49 normal cases and 103 complex cases did not
meet the pledge due to a number of reasons, including (i) some inquiry
hearings were adjourned/could not be scheduled due to witnesses and/
or respondents were staying abroad and unable to be contacted and/
or come back to Hong Kong; (ii) the respondents’ legal representatives
requested to adjourn the inquiry hearings for preparation of their clients’
cases; (iii) staff turnover of the relevant Sections; and (iv) among those
103 complex cases, 22 of them involved properties outside Hong
Kong which required longer time to conduct investigation, assess
the sufficiency of evidence in supporting the allegations and make
arrangements for inquiry hearings.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2022/23
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BR A& 3E 5l EZ EEx
Service type Standard Results
TiRER
GERZRERIT PRI ZRMIBREE RHAE
EIERE A EZ) 56
101@ :
Normal Cases OiEPaes 54.63%"*

(Cases other than Fast Track Cases
concerning not more than two allegations
investigated by the EAA)

Within 10 calendar months®®

R 2(EES
- BLAN
(BRRERREBERAIMER) 13{8AR°° ;
Complex Cases o 56 39.41%
Within 13 calendar months™
(Cases other than Fast Track Cases and
Normal Cases)
BARAARGR 10fETERA’ 98.77%
Notify complainants of the outcome of the case Within 10 working days’ e
; &3 3 &
ﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁ#{ﬁ%{ﬂlﬁu% 10T R A®
Notify complainees (licensees) of the outcome 100%

of the case

Within 10 working days®
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Commences from the date of the EAA’s written response to
complainant(s) upon receipt of sufficient supporting documents
from them or (if there is no complainant) from the date of the EAA’s
first allegation letter to licensee(s) concerned to the date of the first
disciplinary inquiry hearing for cases proceeding to an inquiry hearing
for Normal Cases and Complex Cases or to the publication date of
admitted breach(es) on EAA’s website for Fast Track Cases.

Situations out of the EAA’s control, such as no inquiry hearing date is
available after the case is ready for inquiry hearing or the unavailability
of complainant(s), witness(es) and/or the licensee(s) concerned on the
purported inquiry hearing date after the case is ready for inquiry hearing
etc., are disregarded for the purpose of this performance pledge.

From completion of investigation or, in the event the case is submitted
for an inquiry hearing or dealt with under the New Scheme for
Disciplinary Cases, the date of the letter notifying the complainee of the
result of the hearing.

Excludes cases that have to be submitted for inquiry hearings. For the
latter, the statutory requirement is for the EAA to “within the period
of 21 days beginning on the date of the relevant decision, to notify in
writing the licensee and any other person against whom the decision is
made of the decision”.
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Continuing Professional Development (“CPD”) Scheme

BR A% Bl Eiot: EEE
Service type Standard Results
20'1'If’E9E|7q . T
Within 20 working days
301EA T{ERA 100%

Within 30 working days
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HSEET
Organisation and People

MBRE

Organisation structure

TTHRAR

Chief Executive Officer

SR RRNRRRE
nflm

|
.Illl-llll-

SR AERLERE
| | Direct £0 i Director of Regulatory
IFSEROTIE SR SRR O Affairs & General Counsel
.I HEEH EENEN f
e EEEBREAD
n_ Legal Services &
Complaints L
Examination
TEE LEWAE
Enforcement Disciplinary Proceedings

JE B AR

Licensing
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R REREREE
Director of Services &
Professional Development

BBERD EERRER
Corporate Communications/
Board Secretariat

Bt 7% B2 47 BUER

Finance & Administration

AN EIFE

Human Resources

BB R EIED W
IT & Data Analysis

HEZR

Professional Development




BEERLITHE TiRE
Non-directorate staff establishment

B 4R
Rank

¥
Number

3

19

21

12

28
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BT E X
Management team

m THEARENEZT
Ms Ruby HON
Chief Executive Officer

m TEHRREREELL
Ms Anita CHAN
Manager (Enforcement)

m EEERREHLL
Ms Jennifer YUNG
Legal Counsel

BB RTHEBREERHRZ L
Ms Mary CHANG

Manager

(Finance and Administration)

BATHRERZMEE

Mr CHAN U Keng
Director of Operations

HWEREBEER 2022/23F 1)
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ERNBEREE S MBS REE
MREXRE

Mr LAM Ka Man

Senior Manager

(IT and Data Analysis)

iyl AEERBESRCERERL+
Ms Anissa CHENG
Senior Manager
(Corporate Communications)

BREREXBRREETIRBELLE
Mr Ivan WONG

Director of Services

and Professional Development

REFERARE /N Z £
Ms Christine CHONG
Manager (Complaints)

m BEBERSEEMELL
Ms Ilvy LEE
Senior Manager (Licensing)

m RERERLERERELZ T
Ms Juliet LEUNG
Director of Regulatory Affairs
and General Counsel

m ERESEREADLEZTNE LT
Ms Grace LI

Manager

(Legal Services and Examination)

m EEREERBRELE
Mr YK LEUNG
Legal Counsel

RFBEBERMELL
Ms Susanna TSUI
Manager (Complaints)

EXERRPLERHKRLZ T
Ms Fallon LEUNG
Manager

(Professional Development)
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Staffing and remuneration
Staffing

The EAA Administration is led by the Chief Executive Officer
who is responsible for managing the business of the EAA, and
monitoring and supervising compliance with the Estate Agents
Ordinance. As at 31 March 2023, the staff establishment was
109. The percentage of employees with disabilities was 1%.

Remuneration

The EAA regularly reviews its remuneration policy to ensure
that its remuneration packages are in line with the market
trends, so as to maintain competitiveness in attracting and
retaining talent. An independent consultant was commissioned
to conduct a pay level and pay trend survey during the year.
The pay ranges were revised in line with the market and the
20283 annual performance-linked pay adjustment also drew
reference from the recommendations of the consultant.

Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and Directors
during the year

The total remuneration’ of the Chief Executive Officer and
Directors during the year was as follows:

A
Number of
individuals
1,500,001-2,000,000 7T $1,500,001 to $2,000,000 2
2,000,001-2,500,000 7T $2,000,001 to $2,500,000 1
3,500,001-4,000,000 7T $3,500,001 to $4,000,000 1
ey Total 4

! EEFHRINEEFAINNGEE  HF
e REHBABNAEERE (WER) -

! Total remuneration includes salary, contract-end gratuity and
performance-linked pay, if applicable, paid during the year.
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EEREI2HEHEBAZTENABNLEES RAEHNHEE
EAA staff participated in a talk organised by ICAC regarding

corruption prevention and flawless integrity.

WEREEER 2022/23F &

Training and communication
Staff training and development

With rising public expectations on the accountability and
transparency of public organisations, the EAA needs to ensure
that its staff are equipped with the necessary competencies
to discharge their duties, respond to the community’s evolving
needs, and achieve consistently high levels of performance.
As part of its human resources strategy, the EAA is committed
to providing various kinds of resources, including in-house
workshops, external training programmes and training
sponsorship to enhance their competencies and support their
career development.

Being employees of a public body, EAA staff should possess a
high level of awareness on corruption prevention and flawless
integrity. For this purpose, the ICAC was invited to deliver a talk
to all new staff and current staff to refresh their knowledge.

EEREE I ABRRERMAT [BK]IRE -
An “lce-Breaking” session was designed as part of the EAA’s
orientation programme for new staff.
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RIEBEEEKEEREER
To foster team spirit and sense of belonging, staff welfare activities, such as a staff relax corner, lunchtime workshops, and Christmas
lunch, were arranged during the year.
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EEE BHTTHELFY The EAA Administration

To cultivate closer working relationships among existing and
new staff and build up their mutual trust in each other, an “Ice-
Breaking” session was designed as part of the EAA’s orientation
programme for new staff.

All training activities aim to enhance the professional knowledge
and skills of the EAA staff, to develop their full potential and to
prepare them for greater challenges and achievements ahead.

Staff communication

The EAA reinforces communication among staff through different
channels, including regular meetings among management staff
and sectional meetings, horizontally to ensure transparency and
understanding of the work of different sections and vertically
to convey direction to different rankings of staff. The senior
management further regularly reaches out to staff through various
communication sessions, such as the sectional briefing sessions
to share the latest messages and direction from the senior
management on matters such as the EAA’s corporate plan and
organisational changes, as well as to provide a platform for the
staff to share their views.

ﬂl \ £ K
ATE AGENTS AUTHORITY

EERRFRRTTETELRY  WMRHMEIZEMENFNRE S ILEIRFEERLFES -
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The EAA has been presented the “Grand Prize
Award” under the Manpower Developer Scheme
of the Employees Retraining Board.
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To foster team spirit and sense of belonging, staff welfare
activities, such as a staff relax corner, lunchtime workshops, and
Christmas lunch, were arranged during the year.

Moreover, to enhance colleagues’ mental health awareness,
the EAA participated in the Mental Health Workplace Charter
initiated by the Government and was commended as one of the
Mental Health Friendly Organisations. Three of the EAA staff were
assigned to attend training and certified as Mental Health First
Aiders under a programme organised by Department of Health,
Labour Department and Occupational Safety & Health Council,
for providing first and instant aid to mental health needs within
the office.

Corporate and staff awards
Corporate awards

The EAA received the Caring Organisation logo for the eighth
consecutive year presented by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition of the EAA’s commitment and contribution
to “Caring for the Community”, “Caring for the Employees” and
“Caring for the Environment”.

The EAA has also been presented the “Grand Prize Award”
under the Manpower Developer Scheme of the Employees
Retraining Board in recognition of its outstanding achievements
in manpower training and development.

Estate Agents Authority
HERIPEER

—

N
)
caringorganisation

Mission

RE
REFRRRGB - ERATHRAE - SHUTBRARN
RN WORTRRAWA - RFRIAMILE -

CO-CREATION FOR COMMUNITY 20 *fl,afq*d?_
O USNESS. So0IL PARTNERSHP B0

Caring for the Community

=
weslf 5
-

Caring gh n. Employees  Caring for the Environment
AT

Vold from 1 March 2023 1o 29 February 2024
20 %351 BRI £27 20 £

EERES/\FEEALERBHSBRERORBIE IR -
The EAA received the Caring Organisation logo for the eighth consecutive year
presented by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.
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Staff awards

An Officer of the Licensing Section and an Assistant Manager
of the Human Resources Section received “The Ombudsman’s
Award 2022” for “Officers of Public Organisations” in recognition
of their professional and positive attitude in serving the public
and handling complaints and enquiries. This was the eighth
consecutive year that the EAA staff have received the Award.

Returning to normalcy from COVID-19

Since April 2022, the work from home roster arrangement had
been suspended while the vaccine pass arrangement continued
to be implemented within the EAA’s office. Following the
Government’s cessation of the vaccine pass and home isolation
order, the EAA also lifted the vaccine pass requirement and
internal control measures in relation to COVID-19 in January
2023; and all of its work returned to normal.

Financial Review

Income and expenditure

For the year under review, the EAA reported a surplus of $16.8
million (as compared to a surplus of $13.3 million last year).
Income for the year was $96.3 million, an increase of $3.2 million
or 3.4% over the previous year. Other income for the year was
represented by subsidizing a portion of the expenditure incurred
by the EAA on organising two approved training programmes
under the Matching Grant Scheme for Skills Upgrading.
Expenditure for the year was $79.6 million, representing a
decrease of $1.75 million or 2.2% compared to the previous
year.
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WA Income

FRRR B UL A (G420 A B987.0% © 48,380 Licence fee income, contributing 87.0% of the total income, was
ErxT HIFEHRAE FANZEABWK $83.8 million and was almost the same as that of the previous

A BB T B FFE 708 T3k year. Examination fee income was $9.4 million, representing an
82%  FERRERZAMNE2021/22F E increase of $0.7 million or 8.2% over the previous year, mainly
MEANERZRE019TINFE S HEZE due to a higher demand for extra examination seats for 2022/23
15 ELE - BE2022/23F EHREINE as a result of the cancellation of a few sessions of qualifying
% BE AL B & SR 0 o F B A R300&E examinations in the previous year of 2021/22 because of the
TC B _EFE 2608 T 3k689% R COVID-19 pandemic. Interest income was $3 million, representing
A ZRITERFZEA - an increase of $2.6 million or 689% over the previous year, due

to the increase in bank deposit interest rate.

3%

e 9% ﬁ?

2021/22 _ 90% ..

. 8% ‘

2020/21 _ 89% .

10% I —
o

2022/23

= }2E%E Licence Fees
= 5% Examination Fees
= FBULA Interest Income
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S Expenditure

ETAEBE A REABERY AW Staff costs, and office premises and related expenses were two
KFESTH 5BIL158K 67.6%% major expenditure items, accounting for about 67.6% and 5.2%

52% « FELBEENNYEERAE of the total expenditures respectively. Expenditure items that saw
TR W% BMENZEZITELE major increases in dollar amount were staff cost, depreciation
EREEEES Y METELEER of property, plant and equipment and expenses on the 25"
PHRYHBEBBR AW AZTHBE XX LHE anniversary activities. Other expenditure items that saw major
% o decreases are office accommodation related expenses and lease
rentals.
21% o 28%

o 11% | 2020/21 | 68% ., 2021/22 | 62%
e 10% ‘
27%

T =
=" B Staff costs
2022/23 68% o & RS R
' Office premises and
P 5% related expenses
=" Hfth Others
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Matching Grant Scheme for Skills Upgrading

The EAA completed the two training programmes organised
under the Government’s Matching Grant Scheme for Skills
Upgrading in June 2022. Total expenditure for organising
the two training programmes was $514,860 (excluding other
administrative expenses) of which 75% was subsidised by the
Government.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The EAA is committed to integrating corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) principles into our daily operations and
contributing to the sustainable development of society. Key
CSR aspects such as community, environment and workplace,
are integrated into all our operational decisions and practices.
Maintaining good CSR practices that align with our role as a
statutory body involves everyone at the EAA.

Apart from the CSR activities organised by the EAA for the
participation of the estate agency trade, staff of the EAA also
joined a number of other CSR activities.

EERBEIRG2HEHAH EEBRBNEEA -
The EAA Staff participated in the Flag day organised
by social welfare organisations.
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REALERETRE -

Charity participation

To show our care to the underprivileged and those in need, the
EAA supported various fund-raising activities (e.g. Dress Casual
Day, Love Teeth Day, Skip Lunch Day, Flag day, etc.) and
community services of non-profit making organisations.

This year, the EAA also supported the fund-raising activity
organised by The Community Chest Pandemic Rainbow Fund
(Pandemic Rainbow Fund) to provide financial assistance to the
individuals and families affected by the pandemic, especially the
unemployed and underemployed.

EEREI—ITWRBERLUE -
The EAA Staff go hiking together and clean up the mountains.

EEREI2HBRREARRIRRBERNEER TED -
The EAA Staff participated in environment conservation and
planting volunteer activities at K-Farm.
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Post-50 Internship Programme

The EAA joined the Post-50 Internship Programme held by the
Employees Retraining Board which aimed to provide people
aged over 50 with an opportunity to join the workforce. During
the one-month internship programme working in the EAA, the
participants had the opportunity to develop their strengths in
the workplace and got up to date with the current status of the
job market. After the internships, the EAA voluntarily offered
one of the participants a temporary job, which was followed by
a full-time appointment after her satisfactory completion of the
temporary job.

EER2INMEEBEIBEWE 1250 BE L
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The EAA joined the Post-50 Internship Programme
held by the Employees Retraining Board.

Job Creation Scheme

To support the Government’s initiative to ease the worsening
unemployment situation due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the EAA
was approved by the Government to create some temporary
posts under the Job Creation Scheme of the sixth round of the
Anti-epidemic Fund. Under the scheme, the incumbents were
offered job opportunities amid the pandemic and they contributed
to the EAA through visiting estate agency shops in person to
educate licensees about various compliance issues on the spot.
Their educational visits were well-received by the estate agency
shops.
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Environment

The EAA strives to operate as an environmentally friendly
organisation and promotes the same to its staff. Green office
measures adopted range from the installation of energy saving
air-conditioning and lighting, timer for switching off lighting and
air-conditioning automatically, sensor for turning off lighting when
no one is moving around the area, to the provision of designated
trays to collect one-side printed paper for reuse; recycling of
paper and toner cartridges; and use of environmentally friendly
printing paper, etc.

The EAA also participated in several environmental initiatives
during the year, e.g. Biz-Green Dress Day, Green Low Carbon
Day.
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The EAA Staff participated in “Biz-Green Dress Day” co-
organised by the Construction Industry Council and the
Hong Kong Green Building Council.

Information Technology

Online services

Although the COVID-19 pandemic is alleviating and the
operations of the EAA have resumed to normal, the habits and
behaviours of the licensees and the general public have changed.
More users have switched to the use of online services and
preferred to interact with the EAA through electronic means. As
a result, the EAA pursued a number of ad hoc initiatives such as
the development of an online assessment platform for recruitment
and other online functions which could improve the working
efficiency internally and enrich users’ experience externally.

Cyber security

With the ever-increasing threat of cyber-attacks and data
leakage, the EAA has constantly reviewed its security platform
and parameters to ensure that they are on a par with the industry
practice and up to date.
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As the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Hong
Kong subsided and stabilised, the EAA offices
reopened to the public.
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The EAA launched a series of four bilingual
animation videos to promote the new slogan “To
buy or not to buy non-local off-plan properties?
Assess the risks before you buy!” which recorded
950,000 views in total.
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Consumer educaiton Video:

’ﬁf-plan properties outside Hong Kong,
Assess the risks ® before you bg{z)!
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With subsidies from the Government’s Matching
Grant Scheme for Skills Upgrading under the
Anti-epidemic  Fund, a total of 19 classes of

“Video Production for Estate Agency Trade Using
Smartphone” and a total of 12 classes of “Learning
English through Land Search” were successfully
completed with an overwhelming response.

7/2022
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The EAA welcomed new Chairman Mr Simon SIU
Chak-yu, BBS, JP and Vice-chairman Ms Jane
Curzon LO, BBS, JP.
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The EAA met the press to review its work in the
first half of 2022 and introduce its initiatives for the
second half.
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The EAA donated cookies to Christian Action
for distributing to underprivileged families and
children living in subdivided flats.

8/2022
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The EAA’s Annual Report 2020/21 won the Silver
award in the 2022 ARC Awards, an international
competition, in the Non-Profit Organisation (Printed
Annual Report) — Government Agencies and Offices
Category.

EERBRP N HAYETSOIEMEANE | NFHERE
The EAA held a public seminar titled “Retrospect
and Prospects of Hong Kong Property Market”.
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The EAA’s consumer education campaign about
purchasing uncompleted properties outside of Hong
Kong was granted “The Education Award (Consumer
Education)” by the Association of Real Estate
License Law Officials, an international association.

snigie
£tiB EIR® AP E

)ﬁf-nlan properties outside Hong Kong,
Assess the risks W before you buy!
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The EAA’s Chairman, CEO and Directors of the EAA met the press to share the EAA’s works; and to maintain a
cordial relationship with the media.

EERBERT=SIBEAMNE] - HERERERER] KB EZRRSE -
Three sessions of “Estate Agents Elderly Service Day” were held to visit the elderly in various districts of Hong
Kong.
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The EAA was granted the “Grand Prize Award” of the year 2020-2022
presented by the Employees Retraining Board in recognition of the EAA’s

achievements in manpower training and development. ESTA I“!ll!uﬁm..' ")
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Together we Establish

Advocate and Achieve

EERB AR ZEL YouTube #B1E @ #HH MR
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The EAA partnered with a popular local YouTube
channel to produce and launch two special feature
videos to show the hard work and enthusiasm of
estate agents, which recorded over 170,000 views
in total.

¥ 5 [z JE B 8] B8 Recap of Initiatives and Events

The EAA held a ceremony to celebrate the 25" anniversary of its establishment.

11/2022
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“Premium CPD Marks for Estate Agencies” (Silver
and Gold) were launched to encourage more
participation in the EAA’s Continuing Professional
Development Scheme by estate agency shops.

E* wEREEER
ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY

Professional Learning

Em KRB EER
ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY

Professional Learning

SR Silver Mark

4% Gold Mark
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Two EAA staff members were granted the
Ombudsman’s Award 2022 for Officers of Public
Organisations.
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The EAA held a Facebook live seminar titled “Back
to Basics: Purchasing Properties”.
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A promotional leaflet on
“Letting of subdivided
units by licensed estate
agents/salespersons”
was published. The
leaflet was widely
distributed through the
EAA’s website and the
Home Affairs Enquiry
Centres in various
districts.
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/
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The quarterly trade liaison meeting resumed
in-person and was held with major trade
representatives to discuss various topics of mutual
concern.

1/2023
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The EAA met the press to review its work in 2022
and introduced its initiatives for 2023.

EEREFERTHARLFEE SR MEREXHS
B S BB ER S -

The EAA Chairman and CEO attended the
inauguration and annual dinner of the Hong Kong
Property Agencies Association.
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EERTREHESTBECERG B - D
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EEREREE B s Ea

2R G REFE O The EAA CEO attended a live interview programme
REAE IR UKE S i with Metro Radio, reviewed the EAA’s major work in
BRI —FHELRM : 2022 and introduced its initiatives for 2023.

SEETHENIE-
The EAA was awarded
by the Hong Kong
Council of Social
Service as a Caring
Organisation again in
recognition of its efforts
spent on corporate
social responsibility in
the previous year.

3/2023
EERREASHLEEA AR AMEREANE
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Facebook B &8 B © A webinar for estate agents on “Protection of
The EAA held a Facebook live seminar titled “Be Personal Data Privacy for the Estate Agency Sector”
vigilant to the risks before purchasing off-plan was jointly organised by the EAA and the Office of
properties outside Hong Kong”. the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data with the

Privacy Commissioner as the keynote speaker.

B EPEIRELN E ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY
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The EAA organised “Estate Agents’ Children Service Day” to show care and support to children from underprivileged
families through an interactive workshop.
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Qualifying Examinations

As a gatekeeper to ensure persons entering the trade possess
the required knowledge to provide estate agency services, one of
the prerequisites for obtaining a licence to practise in the estate
agency industry is to pass the relevant qualifying examination.
Currently, the EAA offers two types of qualifying examinations,
namely: (i) the Estate Agents Qualifying Examination (“EAQE”) and
(i) the Salespersons Qualifying Examination (“SQE”).

A candidate who passes the EAQE may apply for either an
estate agent’s licence (individual) or a salesperson’s licence. A
candidate who passes the SQE may apply for a salesperson’s
licence only.

The qualifying examinations were administered by the Institute of
Professional Education And Knowledge (“PEAK”) of the Vocational
Training Council (“VTC”) on behalf of the EAA in 2022/23.

EERBNEREHURRRAMEREBTENALAE
FRE R M

Qualifying examinations are organised to ensure that
persons entering the trade possess the required
knowledge to provide estate agency services
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2022/23F EHERBEEREZ R EEXEERZEANLROT :
A comparison of the EAQE and SQE held in 2022/23 is set out as follows:

WEREERZH ExEEREA
EAQE SQE
. EARERRN : 535
ERIBH . ” R
Number of 435 Paper-based: 5 sessions
, 4 sessions BEZSEN - 115
Sessions )
Computer-based: 11 sessions
i
E%iﬁm?n%:t'on 3/ 2Nk 309 &
xaminati
: 3 hours 2 hours and 30 minutes
Time
- FE—Ey : B0MEB A E FE—8n  401BIHE
HAEHE . .
Number of Part 1: 30 stand-alone questions Part 1: 40 stand-alone questions
Questions LB 20 FHEBURBERS ) FEHH  10GABEKBERST)
Part 2: 20 questions based on case studies | Part 2: 10 questions based on case studies
=N ZIEEE
Format Multiple-choice questions
BB H BE P TR EE60%
Pass Mark At least 60% of correct answers in each part

ERELNBREMELSY BP0 R
BYAR  Z—Ho/KEBEERIITH
AR BENBEEMEILD YRS EHE

ZANFE Ao AAEEHHERESR
REANREXREEREAANTHET S
HEHBENRE - BEREANMERER
BHOEEMER  F Mo ARAZE
BRBEANERER

4k,
FHEY Be °

The qualifying examinations comprise of two parts — one
consisting of stand-alone questions and the other consisting
of questions based on case studies. Candidates must pass
both parts in order to pass the examination.

Part 1 of the examination is intended to test candidates’
knowledge of various parts of the syllabi of the EAQE and
SQE, including the laws and practices applicable to the estate
agency practice, while Part 2 is intended to test candidates’
ability to apply the knowledge to practical scenarios.
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31.2%

2022/23

Number of Examination Candidates

Number of registrants and candidates for qualifying
examinations

A total of 5,181 persons registered for the EAQEs and a total of
7,356 persons registered for the SQEs held in 2022/23, which
represented a decrease of about 9% and about 2.6% respectively
over those of the previous year.

Compared to that in 2021/22, the number of examination
candidates that actually took the EAQE decreased by about 12%
to 4,594 and in the case of the SQE, it decreased by about 4.8%
to 6,240.

Owing to the implementation of social distancing measures
under COVID-19 which prevailed over most of 2022/23 and the
unavailability of some examination venues for holding paper-
based examinations in fear of the risk of spreading COVID-19,
the seating capacity of school-based examination venues was
reduced significantly. In order to meet the demand of candidates
for qualifying examinations, the EAA continued to book
commercial venues for paper-based examinations throughout
most of the year.

In 2022/23, the average pass rates for the EAQE and SQE were
31.2% and 29.1% respectively, as against 30.7% and 30.2%
respectively in 2021/22.
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Educational background of candidates

In 2022/283, the percentage of candidates who took the SQE and
who have attained tertiary or above educational level was about
35.6%, and that for the EAQE was about 47.8%, as compared to
33.8% and 41.8% respectively in 2021/22. Generally, candidates
with higher educational qualifications scored higher marks than
those candidates with lower educational qualifications.

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
BF
. EEEZ4L EEEZ4L EEEAE
Education b H = =
S % of BHeE % of aHE % of BHeE
candidates Pass rate candidates Pass rate candidates Pass rate
PR
F5 28% 17.1% 30% 25.4% 29.6% 28%
A 8% 19.7% 8.8% 25% 9.4% 29.2%
F.6 or F.7
HERIEERER
EAQE KRB £
Tertiary or 44.5% 25.8% 41.8% 35.6% 47.8% 33.4%
above
AR 19.5% 24.1% 19.4% 31.1% 13.2% 31.6%
Unknown
FR
F5 35.5% 33.3% 34.5% 27.3% 35.4% 24.9%
A 15.7% 29.7% 16.4% 26.7% 17% 25.2%
F.6 or F.7
EEBEAKED
SQE REHKMUE
Tertiary or 34.6% 44.5% 33.8% 33.5% 35.6% 34.7%
above
AR 14.2% 42% 15.3% 33% 12% 30.3%
Unknown
BREATHBEES Occupational background of registrants

RMEERESANALTER TR ZEL KK
BESTSEMALT BESERAE -
BT BE - BRERRE - X2
EREBEREAMEXEEREANE
AR R H B A48%F41% o

Persons registered for the qualifying examinations included
students and people from a wide range of occupational
backgrounds, including the retail and wholesale business,
banking, accounting, investment and insurance. About 48% of
the candidates took the EAQE and about 41% of the candidates
took the SQE for the first time.
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Estate Agents Qualifying Examination
MERIEE 26.7% B/t e R 3.49%
. () . (o}
Estate agency trade Education/social service
TE P - 8% BIE, B 1.99%
. (o] . (o]
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Ri7/ &5/ KE - 6% i 1.3%
. (o} . (¢}
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i 6.1% e 0.9%
Insurance Aviation
VIREE 5.4% it 14.3%
Property management Others
sy =
rcnitecture/surveying BRI .
16.3%
= Unknown
4%
Students °
EXEEREHA
Salespersons Qualifying Examination
RELXE 38.4% B/ ek 5 90
. (o) . (o}
Salesperson-trainee Education/social service
B 1o wE/AE 5 19,
(o] . (o]
Students Architecture/surveying
TE/BH 6 50 g 1+ 30
. (o] . (o]
Retail/wholesale business Tourism
R 5.1% 055 0.7%
Insurance Aviation
Mg EE & Afto 6.5%
Property management Others
R1T /G5 RE 3.4%
. (o]
Banking/accounting/investment SR S x
BRI e
. (o)
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BIE B 5 7%

Hotel/catering
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Number of attempts by candidates at examinations
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Licensing

Licensing regime

Subject to certain exceptions as stipulated in the Estate Agents
Ordinance (“EAQ”) and its subsidiary legislation, any person who
carries out estate agency work in Hong Kong must hold a valid
licence. Failure to do so is an offence.

Under the licensing regime, there are two types of licences,
namely, salesperson’s licence and estate agent’s licence. A
salesperson’s licence may only be granted to an individual while
an estate agent’s licence may be granted either to an individual
or a company.

An individual holding a salesperson’s licence may only perform
estate agency work for a licensed estate agent, whereas a holder
of an estate agent’s licence may perform estate agency work
either for a licensed estate agent or in his/her capacity as a sole
proprietor, a partner of a partnership, or a director of a company
holding an estate agent’s licence. He may also be appointed as
a manager of an office of an estate agency business responsible
for its effective and separate control’.

Section 38 of the EAO requires each office of an estate agency
business to be under the effective and separate control of a
manager who must be a holder of an estate agent’s licence
(individual).
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Before operating an estate agency business at a particular place
of business using a particular business name, an estate agent
is required to apply for a statement of particulars of business
(“SPOB”).

To be granted an estate agent’s licence or a salesperson’s
licence, an individual must fulfill the following requirements:

° having attained the age of 18 years;

° having completed an educational level of Form Five of
secondary education or its equivalent;

° having passed the relevant qualifying examination'; and

° having been considered by the EAA a “fit and proper”
person.

Licensing figures

In the year of 2022/23, the population of individual licensees
declined while the number of company licensees increased
slightly. As at 31 March 2023, the total number of individual
licences fell to 41,074, representing a decrease of 2.2% over that
of the previous year. Among these individual licences, 22,208
were salesperson’s licences and 18,866 were estate agent's
licences (individual). However, compared with the previous year,
the number of company licences increased by 1.3% to 3,966.

The total number of SPOBs also recorded a minor drop, from
7,160 in 2021/22 to 7,092 in 2022/23 (i.e. a decrease of 0.9%).

In 2022/23, 2,347 new individual licences were granted, a
decrease of 18.2% compared to that of the previous year.

1£2022/23F € » EEE BRI 2,347 EF R EMEARER - & £
FEMD18.2% °

In 2022/23, 2,347 new individual licences were granted, a
decrease of 18.2% compared to that of the previous year.

! The qualifying examination must have been passed within 12

months immediately before the date of an application for the grant
of a licence.




BA=FHEBREXFFHRBPELHE
Number of Licences and SPOBs in the Past Three Years

HERERR ()
Salesperson’s
40,000 Licence (i)
HERE (EA)
FERR (i)
30,000 Estate Agent’s Licence
' (Individual) (ii
A - 22,208 {ELARERRAEE () + (i)
El u Total Number of
20,000 El = — u I.ndivifjual Licences
18,463 18,981 18,866 (i) + (ii)
ERIE (A7) R
Estate Agent’s
10,000
’ 7,046 7,160 7,092 )
I:l B = P Licence (Company)
B = u A g e
3,888 3,915 3,966 [a=] :P%”Bilﬁ“% 4
0
31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023

BE=ZFHFH/EHBEARREE
New Licences (Individual) Granted in the Past Three Years

2,500
#8 % Total
2 Total 2,868
2,292
2,000
HERIE (AA) 2R

Estate Agent’s Licence

(Individual)
1,600

HEERR

Salesperson’s
1,000 Licence

500

31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023
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Advances in Gatekeeping

BAFBRANER
Background of individual licensees

BEANBEKFE(BE2023F3A310)
Educational Level of Licensees (as at 31/3/2023)

3. 7% 1. 7% 2. 7%
L+ 431% - 27.7% 7%r - 34.7% 7%(
53 2% 70 6% 62 6%

HERIE (EA) EERBRRSAA fe

RRRIFEAE A Holders of Overall
Holders of Estate Salesperson’s

Agent’s Licence Licence
(Individual)
= RANT ¥ R RARARZSE o REHU
Below F.5 Completed F.5 or equivalent Tertiary or above

BHEANER(BEZ2023%3H31H)
Age of Licensees (as at 31/3/2023)

35
30 29.5%
- HERE (EAA) R
ESZEPN
Holders of Estate Agent’s
- Licence (Individual)
/& BEEIBRIBEAA
15 Holders of Salesperson’s
Licence
10 B
Overall
7.9%
5 s2% 5.3%
2.2% 3.2%
0.9%
O <<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<
<26 26 - 35 36 - 45 46 - 55 56 - 65 >65

HWEREBEER 2022/23F 1)




BEARRENBEAZES (8122023F3A31H)
Licensees’ Choice of Language in Communication (as at 31/3/2023)

254 ®X
Chinese English
88.4% 11.6%
95.3% 4.7%
92.2% 7.8%
WERBEENEEMR Operations of estate agency business

— BT 1L - 2022/23FE E K Z HHE R As usual, most of the estate agencies operated in 2022/23 were
BEENNRENLEE - & FE20234%E3 small scale operators. As at 31 March 2023, 95.7% of estate
A318 » 95. 7% ENRIBEBRLEE agency operators operated as a single shop and less than 1%
ARER—RES MABGEREMES  had five or more shops.

HA LW RIED 1% °

REEEHNEEEN (BF2023F3A310H)
Mode of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2023)

EEEE
SHEAEHE
&K Mode No. of SPOBs

5,418

164

1,610

7,092

* 3,966 R AR AL S * Operated by 3,966 company licensees
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Advances in Gatekeeping

REEBEHNRE (BE2023F3831H)
Size of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2023)

EHEE
Number of shops*
reE

Operator 1 2 3 4 5-10 11-20 21-30 >30
BR A& Limited companies 3,768 121 37 11 22 2 1 4
A B8 Partnerships 149 4 1 1 0 0 0 0
BB L& Sole proprietorships 1,433 30 1 2 1 0 0 0
/Nt Sub-total | 5,350 155 39 14 23 2 1 4

84

* BIRXFRHBAE

THEBERA

BRREBEANBHEEE TREGKERT
BEIER - HERBEBAREFTAE
A —IBEEGKE EERESERERE
HRER 5 o £2022/23F B - EEE Rk
BTSIRERBRRE REABE: B:F
REFEBEANERER (T HER
EHERBHOEE AE] (HlniEExRA
FIEFEITHETE) ©

BIEERERRE  HERBEATEEA
HEFARROER  HBRINA LR
B -FR BEEREREZ S KB
TAERR  REREBRBEANENT
BRI

BRESE[FEARRNITE

* i.e. SPOBs

Failure to meet the licensing requirements

A licence applicant must have fulfilled certain requirements in
order to be granted a licence. If a licence applicant fails to meet
any of the licensing requirements, his/her licence application will
be refused. In 2022/23, a total of 51 applications were refused
for different reasons, such as applicants were considered not
having the required educational qualifications or not being
considered “fit and proper” persons to be granted a licence (e.g.
bankruptcy or conviction of a criminal offence).

Even if a licence has been granted, a licensee’s licence may
be revoked if he/she is no longer eligible to continue to hold a
licence. During the year, a total of 41 licences were revoked by
the Licensing Committee as the relevant licensees no longer met
the licensing requirements.

Actions Taken Against Licensees by the Licensing Committee

fTE) %5l Types of Actions 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
fERERR _E B hn{&{4 Attachment of conditions to licence 53 87 84
k@ 44 P8 BB Suspension of licence 0 0 ’
84 k2 58 Revocation of licence 36 30 41

WENRBESRE 2022/23F



WERBERR

ERETRRMLEMETRBEIREAE
ABEA > HEBEABRTZR24E AN
AEAAEREAEA  JRBELEZER
- TR BEE RIRE 28,1925 @
ABFEARBIFRANERAS - HF
F62.9% (A7, 7470 B EF) &8 L

SE 2x
R o

. 20000 T ATt

Online application for licences

Individual licensees and former licensees whose individual
licences have ceased to be valid for not more than 24 months
may submit their licence applications online if they have
registered an e-Service account at the EAA’s website. During
the year, among the 28,192 licence applications received from
current and former holders of individual licences, 62.9% (i.e.
17,747 licence applications) were submitted online.
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BB

REUWERBKERIDKINEER &
ETHENDBEREEERMERER
EEBNHE MEDER/EENXS
ZWTE - MEEEREREXETT
ERERER AT IR
o EMERBEITIEZ HERE RE
XEVBARBURMA CGhEREKDD) K
HMBZED BEERBHNERTT
ADEAEBERANAERES -

BHHHRES

EERTHRAXANRE T AREL
HEBE - WRHES TERKE £
FIEAREHEBRMBMEZRTNEE-

HRBRERNEBEAHIIAE S - AE
EN2022/23F EHBR 2 HERE - B
TRERLBELHTONZBE

BHHBSFEARMS

AREFEACLETHERETERS
BTARBEEENRG - PARIREE MR
EEEANFABOSTRFEBRE %
Xt EEREFARFBEARZELT
NEBHERAKSE B —EflFmT
I Frat o

AETHEE E2022F B REF T
o RAABERIINRATREENLER - B
ERBEBFEARYG  REFEAS
BEEUALREZMMLER K REHD
wRERBIEE AT o

ZEDMBITSERAS (TR
BRM-—OBABYESHHSRERRE
ERERENTHNENR EERELHY
FrREA T - SR EE F5 HR AR Bl A ASOR TE
FREKBMEMRDEEER KN EMM
P 6 21 #) L e 3 L R B S e o A R ) BB
BRERELRER -

WENRBESRE 2022/23F

Ethics and Regulations

Introduction of regulations

The EAA established under the Estate Agents Ordinance (“EAQ”)
is tasked to, inter alia, regulate and control the practice of estate
agents and salespersons and to take such actions as the EAA
considers appropriate or necessary to promote the integrity and
competence amongst, or maintain or enhance the status of,
estate agents and salespersons. Estate agents and salespersons
must observe and comply with all the relevant provisions in the
EAO and its subsidiary legislation, the Code of Ethics and all the
applicable guidelines set out in the practice circulars issued by
the EAA when they carry out estate agency work.

Issuance of practice circulars

The EAA reviews the practices of the trade and issues practice
circulars to provide guidelines on estate agency practice from
time to time, to enable licensees to comply with their duties
under the law.

As the guidelines set out in existing practice circulars were
sufficient to cover issues that arose in 2022/23, no new practice
circulars were issued by the EAA during the year.

Issuance of Letters to Licensees

With a view to reminding licensees of the requirements under
the relevant laws and regulations when carrying out estate
agency work and to draw their attention to the updates on
certain Government measures and/or documentation which may
be relevant to their practices, the EAA issued six Letters to
Licensees during the year, of which some are highlighted below.

In view of the announcement by the Chief Executive in his 2022
Policy Address on the stamp duty refund for eligible incoming
talents, the EAA issued a Letter to Licensees to draw their
attention to the subject matter and referred them to the related
FAQs and illustrative examples provided by the Inland Revenue
Department.

In consideration of the statement on High-Risk Jurisdictions
subject to a Call for Action issued by the Financial Action Task
Force (“FATF”), the EAA issued a Letter to Licensees to draw
their attention to the FATF’s decision to call on its members and
other jurisdictions to apply enhanced due diligence measures
proportionate to the risk arising from Myanmar.
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Due to competition concern arisen from internal memos issued
by four estate agency companies directing their licensed
employees to observe a minimum net commission of 2% in
the first-hand property transactions, the EAA issued a Letter
to Licensees reminding them not to enter into any agreement
or engage in any concerted practices which have the object or
effect of preventing, restricting or distorting competition.

Complaints and Inspections

Complaints and enquiries handling

In 2022/23, the EAA received 254 complaints, a decrease of
11% from 285 complaints in 2021/22. Among the 254 complaints
received in the year, key allegations included issuing non-
compliant advertisements, mishandling of provisional agreements
for sale and purchase (or provisional tenancy agreements), and
providing false or misleading information on rental return.

In general, there was a decrease in most types of complaints,
including issuing non-compliant advertisements, from 96
in 2021/22 to 59 in 2022/23. The online advertisements
complaints, which constituted 88% of the 59 advertisement
complaints in 2022/23, decreased from 87 in 2021/22 to 52 in
2022/23. Currently, advertising online remains the mainstream
in the property market, the EAA has and will continue to step
up its enforcement actions to spot-check and monitor online
advertisements, by way of both compliance checks and cyber
patrols on property online platforms and social media with the
aid of IT technology.

Due to the easing of the COVID-19 pandemic in the first quarter
of 2023, the first-hand residential property market has become
more active. Notwithstanding, the complaints concerning the sale
of first-hand residential properties decreased from 47 in 2021/22
to 25 in 2022/23, a drop of 47%. Key allegations of those
complaints were issuing non-compliant advertisements, failing to
honour rebate promises, and provision of misleading mortgage
information.

EEE R 2022/23 F [E HIE M 254 RIREF - 812021/22 FEH) 285 RiR
T11% °

In 2022/23, the EAA received 254 complaints, a decrease of 11%
from 285 complaints in 2021/22.
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FRNEERBIMKESL899R A B &E
REPEFENER WHM1,28257E
AEBARNRETH -

RFER
Complaint Cases

In the year, the EAA also received 4,899 enquiries on estate
agency practices, and in response to those enquiries, the EAA
took follow-up actions on 1,282 enquiries.

{EZ= 2B Number of Cases 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
B3 Y {EZ Opened 380 285 254
B5ERk A EZ * Completed* 215 278 217

* FATKOERED BEFERENEZRE -
ETERREEBRRITEN FTLEAS
EeRBEOEE  URBRHFBETH
MEBNKRHEBZRE TR LAER -

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous
years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with
by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of
by the Complaints and Enforcement Sections.

B R E R4 R * Results of Cases Completed* 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
HEMEA S ® Substantiated” 71 111 131
¥5 78 1 A 3Z Unsubstantiated 87 95 -
& # 7R 2 Insufficient information to pursue 29 19 13
H b * Others” 35 = -
# % Total 215 278 .

* FATHWERSD BEFRENESRE
ETERRAEREBRRIITEN FTLEAES
EeRBENEE URBRFBRITH
BEENKREZERE K ZOERE -

° AR ST S R AR —BERBE O ER

[TERAY]  ZETHNEENERNS
WEBEAIEWKL] -

! BREERST BUBRFIAEMREA
i A% 1 SR & H fE 2R

BRKERAE

HERIERHEE BB E2022F FE X 5
2019 KM BREBRFE - 1£2022/23
FE EERE—FTERHESHEET
B 3B R B E12021/224F [E H91,2800K I
D HI9.8%ET1,155K LN  EE R
HWEREEAET TIOREGRKE -
MR AEBRRRAHD FTESEER
FHEIT 71,3050 A MBE -

HWEREBEER 2022/23F 1)

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous
years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with
by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of
by the Complaints and Enforcement Sections.

A completed case will be classified as “Substantiated” if any of the
allegations involved therein has been concluded as “Substantiated”.

Include cases which were curtailed, withdrawn or closed due to other
reasons.

Compliance inspections and investigations

Estate agents’ sales activities continued to be affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2022. Compared with that in 2021/22, the
number of inspections conducted for first-sale sites decreased by
approximately 9.8% from 1,280 to 1,155 in 2022/23. In addition,
the EAA conducted 916 compliance inspections at agency shops
and 1,305 compliance checks for Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”)/
Counter-Terrorist Financing (“CTF”) requirements.



A H EBBLESETYEE
ERAFTER EERMANEE
EPLMEFERES  UWEREE
BEBRMORIL REHOETTE - B 7
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On the other hand, promotion through online advertisements has
remained very popular. The EAA increased its effort on patrolling
online property portals and advertisements in cyberspace so
as to timely identify non-compliances and take enforcement

2022/03FE E KB P TEEHA K actions. Compared with that in 2021/22, the number of online
2021/22F E #91,101{E £ 11 £936% & advertisements inspected therefore increased by approximately
1,4991@ - 36% from 1,101 to 1,499 in 2022/23.
ERKE HE
Compliance Inspections/Spot Checks
& HhE XS Number of Inspections/Spot Checks 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
—FERHE I First-sale sites” 648 1,280 1,155
hENRIERE S Agency shops 880 766 916
$ E /I&/
ERRASRRRNDTASBERE 103 - 208
About AML/CTF requirements
4 E &% Online advertisements 1,319 1,101 1,499

* BIEBRAER
f -

MK E M E E P
1105R Al 2B R (AR

CEERAMI

IR ARG R MM &

T

[m\—f N{

AHIE —

RIEAER T161R{EZE -

KeE THERBENEREBER

Non-compliant Cases Arising from Inspections/Spot Checks

Include development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.

Subsequent to inspections and spot checks, 110 suspected non-
compliant cases were opened for further investigation, while in
the same period 161 cases were completed.

{E =2 B Number of Cases 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
i 32 /Y {E 22 Opened 210 160 110
B A E= Completed* 126 169 161

* FREANERFHD BEFEENEZR -
*¢E%%E BBEKRLITEN TLEEZ

BERIPHERE

PA B el 5 /R R AT B

uBJ“‘iEE’Jﬁﬁ B EZE -

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous
years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with
by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of

by the Complaints and Enforcement Sections.
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H2022/23F K ' EEERAETH2R A
By MERE R ERRIERERE
AR ERER (RECHERIEEG))
BRLE)MNER-FRA BEERME
FENT2IRARER - LETHER
& o

Investigations into licensees/licence applicants
suspected of making false statements or furnishing
false information to the EAA

In 2022/23, the EAA also conducted investigations into 52 licence
applications in which the applicants were suspected of making
false statements or furnishing false information in their licence
application or licence renewal process, which is an offence under
the Estate Agents Ordinance. In the year, the EAA referred 21
suspicious cases to the Police for criminal investigations.

{822 B Number of Cases 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
FZ B 2 Opened 42 37 52
B SEAK Y E % * Completed* 62 49 49

* FANTKNERLD AETEEENRESE - * Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous

TENEXZHEABRZ2H 2 FESSE
SR ER

EERBENRBRAANEENE B
NERHEREXRETETRAERK
RERMGDTESBENRE - EERK
ENERNEMMAR @R FHENE
NAFESHNEEMARERZNE M
WERERBERDBRTRNRITE
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ERERY RTSERSHERERE
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ARABEMRRMD FTESEEEY
B RLER - LA R At P BR B AV AF 4% BB 3R
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EERBZHSFESERRENES
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ERIF - EERKEEHELEESE
BY AR -
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years.

Combatting money laundering and terrorist financing
risks in property transactions

The EAA continued its efforts on supervision of the estate agency
trade practitioners’ compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering
(“AML”) and Counter-Terrorist Financing (“CTF”) requirements.
The intensity of supervision and frequency of inspections by
the EAA were based on the level of threats and vulnerability
of the estate agency companies, which were classified under
different AML/CTF risk categories. Throughout the supervision,
the EAA examined estate agencies’ policies, procedures and
control systems to assess their AML/CTF risks and the mitigation
measures taken by them for the EAA’s continuous monitoring.

In addition, the outreach educational programme (launched
in 2021) which provides face-to-face guidance on AML/CTF
compliance requirements to the lower-risk operators who are
usually small size agencies with less resources, has so far been
effective. Positive feedback has also been received from the
trade. The EAA will continue to help these operators to develop
their compliance culture.
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Disciplinary Actions

Inquiry hearings

If the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the EAA has reasons to
believe that a licensee has failed to comply with the EAO and/or
its subsidiary legislation; or is not eligible to hold or continue to
hold a licence; or has failed to comply with a specified condition
attached to his/her licence, the CEO shall make a submission to
the EAA’s Disciplinary Committee for consideration if an inquiry
hearing should be conducted.

The Disciplinary Committee, a standing committee established
under the EAO, receives, considers and conducts inquiries into
complaints and submissions by the CEO. If the Disciplinary
Committee, after conducting an inquiry hearing, is satisfied that
the complaint or submission is well-founded, it may exercise
disciplinary powers including admonishing or reprimanding
the licensee concerned, attaching/varying specified conditions
attached to his/her licence, suspending/revoking his/her licence,
imposing a fine and making a costs order.

B ERAER -
A staged inquiry hearing.

Despite the continuance of the local anti-epidemic measures
throughout most of 2022/23, the EAA managed to conduct
most inquiry hearings as scheduled. The Disciplinary Committee
adjudicated 299 cases in 2022/23.

Out of the 299 adjudicated cases in 2022/23, 298 were
substantiated (i.e. 99.67%). As a result, a total of 311 licensees
were disciplined, among which 134 were individual licensees'
and 177 were company licensees.

! Including sole-proprietors and partners of estate agency firms.
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During the same period, 13 licences were suspended by the
Disciplinary Committee for periods that ranged from one week
to two months. Licensees disciplined were found to have been
engaged in unprofessional conduct, such as misrepresentations
or failure to protect and promote the interests of their clients
when carrying out their duties.

In 2022/23, a total of 253 licensees were fined, with fines that
ranged from $500 to $286,000.

Publication of reasons for the decisions of inquiry
hearings

The EAA publishes results of recent inquiry hearings on its
webpage titled “Recent Inquiry Hearing Results”. After a period
of three years, the EAA will move all the substantiated full inquiry
hearing cases and their reasons for decisions under “Recent
Inquiry Hearing Results” to its webpage titled “Reasons for
Decisions of Past Inquiry Hearing Cases” for a period of five
years.

The aforesaid publication not only enhances the transparency of
the EAA’s work, it also enables the estate agency trade to have
a better understanding of the EAA’s disciplinary decisions and
learn how to comply with the EAO, which helps reduce the risks
of similar non-compliances in the future. In the long run, it is
hoped that such publication will contribute to the improvement of
the professional standard of the trade.

Publication of the reasons for disciplinary decisions also provides
a way for the public to understand the EAA’s disciplinary
decisions and enables consumers to make informed choices
when they engage the services of licensees.

Number of Inquiry Hearings Held with Decision Handed Down

£ 13 Year

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

FERX 2 Number of hearings

167 318 299

WEREBEER 2022/23F &



f& 1% ¥ 7% Proactive in Law Enforcement

2022/23 FERRERSIE*
Common Types of Non-compliance in 2022/23*

EHERE
Number of
Allegations

1. BHOEEERE FBERIAREMEEMNES MRHERMES AR ERIARSE
MOWER  AEEH EFEEEARE TENESHBHERES EXETNES
Issuing an advertisement with false or misleading information in a material
particular; providing false or misleading information in relation to publication of an
advertisement; advertising without the vendor/landlord’s prior written consent or in
contravention of their instruction

162

2. REEMENESNERE KA M EREMAEEMERE R NZESNER &
#TH) B EA

Failing to state clearly, legibly and accurately in a property advertisement the
property number concerned and/or the date on which the advertisement was
issued/updated

64

3. EESARFRETYENEEEERARAETEERMELNIES
Failing to comply with the guidelines issued by the EAA when providing the floor
area information of a residential property in an advertisement

53

4. REETEERAELNERETRABRREM S FESESHEMNIES
Failing to comply with the guidelines issued by the EAA in respect of compliance of
anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing requirements

48

5. ABERETARBRPAIIANERMESERZES  REEMERERZEDERIHA
Z h a5 A R fE i H

Failing to complete a prescribed form in accordance with the directions and
instructions specified in the form; failing to state clearly in an estate agency
agreement the expiry date of its validity period

48

6. RAHGFRA HMEBXEEREE,§H BeXE K EGEXFURES
ﬁﬁXﬁTEIWﬁMi$E

Affixing/placing or being in possession and having control of an advertisement
board/a poster/folding table/chair/sun shade or pull-up banner in a public area, or
causing or permitting staff to do so

g

28
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- EHERE
2022/23 FERRERSIE* Number of
Common Types of Non-compliance in 2022/23* .
Allegations
7. ABERHHBT TEHEMEBNEERIZENREFAGE  NEEMNEREMENR
B ITIENERE
Failing to exercise effective control on employee(s)/subordinate(s) by establishing 27
proper procedures or systems to supervise and manage the estate agency
business
8. REREPII I HMERIBRZ 53
Failing to enter into an estate agency agreement with clients
9. AFBANBEAREMEMERBARNAERZHAEE —FETELNES
Issuing an advertisement concerning a first-hand residential development in o1
the licensee’s personal capacity instead of in the capacity of an estate agency
company
10. | REARIANMEENSREBRRIFLABT BN R EE R ERER
Failing to possess prescribed property information or ensure that the prescribed 19
property information in the licensee’s possession was accurate
& oL ERS Y RBE—HER * There could be more than one type of non-compliances in some inquiry

=== hearing cases.
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A SR AT A SRET 8

Actions Taken Against Licensees or Former Licensees*

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

BN EALAFEARE

Number of licensees or former licensees involved

252 432 311

TEME’
Type of actions'

Bl

Admonishment/reprimand

163 313 312

141 265 253

TE R B8 T A0 feef 2

Attachment of conditions to licence?

102 206 182

H i miHERR
Suspension of licence

13 18 14

HaH R

Revocation of licence

36" 32° 41°

BUITBHIREBEGEEREGIDFAET
MEDMEIRM - BRI DITHELR
ME HMAEhEREZBEEHEN -
BOBERRREFTEE T ROBER -

D ERST YR —&E AL
i AREUER—IHITH -

BB 4 B HE AR R BT A0 - E 84 B BE
% K

=

EULBERTAMRZEGHTE  EAR
FIEATBNABMMEREGSE -

These actions were taken pursuant to powers under the EAO. Some
actions were disciplinary in nature whereas others were decided by
the Licensing Committee. Some cases were carried over from previous
years.

In some cases, more than one action was imposed on the same
licensee or former licensee.

Some conditions were attached upon the granting of licences while
others were attached subsequently.

These cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground

that the licensees concerned no longer met the relevant licensing
requirements.
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Forward-looking Approach in
Knowledge Dissemination
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FRARBEEL - B8 B B20055 &
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T EETTHE

AR AR - BB E X EERTE
WMEZEETE XEBH SMERER :
[ERRERER] M ZERFER]
[ERRERER|BREEZRE GRAE
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FEERECHNETER

EREBETXEEECHET SEFEEE
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X¥EBE25  cRAEHI2EANEBEER
NERBELI2AFEFTEEEE S D
HEA - AZERFESEEESTENGF
EESEE WRAIEBRRSETXEE
HEIEZHFEE - 52013F10A1BHMAE
MIBFETEEECRERE FERARTEE
—EARAEEERBEIFEIXES
EMESBRE BFUSREREFBER
XEBCHEBUETRERE ([RE])
MSBEEEEEHEBURTRESE
(T&£F]) -

WEREEER 2022/23F &

Professional Development

Since 2005, a voluntary Continuing Professional Development
(“CPD”) Scheme has been introduced to promote a culture of
continuous learning and development among licensees with
a view to improving their professionalism and enhancing the
confidence of the public in their services.

The CPD Scheme

To pique the interest of licensees, a wide range of subjects are
covered in the CPD Scheme. These subjects are classified into
two main categories: Compliance and Effective Management and
All-round Advancement. Compliance and Effective Management
covers topics related to law, compliance, and supervision, while
All-round Advancement covers subjects on raising professional
competence or enabling personal accomplishment of licensees.

To cater for the diverse interests and needs of licensees, CPD
points can be earned through various modes of learning, such
as webinars/online training classes, face-to-face seminars,
e-Learning programmes, and e-Quizzes. Licensees can also
select CPD activities provided or accredited by the widely
recognised professional associations in fields complementary
to the estate agency trade to further meet their quest for
knowledge.

CPD attainment recognitions

Under the CPD Scheme, points would be assigned to CPD
activities based on their nature and the level of input required
from the learner. Generally, attending one hour of activity can
earn one CPD point. By earning at least 12 CPD points within a
12-month CPD period, licensees meet the annual CPD attainment
target and can be awarded the CPD Attainment Symbol.
Starting from 1 October 2013, licensees who achieve their CPD
attainment targets for three and five consecutive CPD periods
will also be awarded the Premium CPD Attainment Silver Symbol
(Silver Symbol) and Premium CPD Attainment Gold Symbol (Gold
Symbol) respectively.



o BEEXFBHASTNREAR
80%HIA LW FFEREE (BRDITHERE)
ZRZFTENFREENBR  ZENH
EREMERERMEXECRTER -

A% E#E Forward-looking Approach in Knowledge Dissemination

In addition, holders of Statement of Particulars of Business
(SPOB) will be awarded the CPD Mark for Estate Agencies if over
80% of their licensed employees (including the branch manager)
meet the annual CPD attainment target.

2022/23 FE#H
B R ®EHHE
Achievement Award No. of awardees
in 2022/23
E—ﬂﬁ@ﬁ&éﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁ@%ﬁm%ﬁﬁE%%%A e 1
Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for one CPD , 4,258
i CPD Attainment Symbol
period
FEEE = (AR EBEN AT RS RN RS BIRNRREA
(B 2013410 A 1 B A A SR ER R A 2 pE
Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for three Slver Syirlael 393°
consecutive CPD periods (with effect from the CPD
period commencing 1 October 2013)
FEEE D EEERERENFETREETEINES BIRRERA
(B20134 10 A 1 BB HEBR BB ER) s
Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for five Gl Syiifoel 53
consecutive CPD periods (with effect from the CPD
period commencing 1 October 2013)
B80% A FHIEEE (BEDITHE)EIHBETXERE
AENEN A %E’\J%%ﬁ’%%ﬁﬂ)%%ﬁﬁ/\ A R S R s .
Holders of SPOB with over 80% of licensed employees GPD Mark for Estate Agencies 247
(including the branch manager) having achieved the CPD
attainment target

! BENENRSLH
z BENFHN RSO
¢ BEIENR S LI

BB RE

AEEEXFBHBEREARER2H
HESXEETE BRI mEETE
EEBETRERE CEE=-ZBANIARE
SEBEEERERNE  EAErEE]
MEBREXFBHBPERTEALE S
FIEEEENAELETRERERS
E-BHERAEUETRENGSRER
R B A S B B & R (B120234F9 A30
H)BHEE o

! Highest in the last 11 years

Highest in the last 6 years
Highest in the last 12 years

2
3

Premium CPD Mark

To encourage more participation of SPOBs in the CPD Scheme,
the current CPD Mark Scheme would be expanded to award
Silver and Gold Premium CPD Marks to eligible SPOBs which
have been awarded CPD Marks for three and five consecutive
CPD periods respectively. The first batch of awardees for the
Premium CPD Marks would be identified after the end of the
current CPD period on 30 September 2023.
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EERSERY Number of activities and enrolments

FR -EERREMERKIES LRI During the year, a total of 945 CPD activities were held by
79451l?—ir£“$¥3ﬁ{ EEIW A HK RS various organisers, including the EAA, with a total of 42,809
T 42,809 AR 2 Hl - FE945EE B F - enrolments. Among the 945 activities, 265 (28% of the
B265% (HEEREW28%) BHEER total number of activities) were organised by the EAA, with
By 28 AKX AE13,342 (M5B 2H approximately 31% of the total enrolments, amounting to 13,342.
NIXHIZ1%) o

TIEHE ARE20198 R EERE During the pandemic period, the EAA suspended its organisation
HEEENRR  BEEREERNUER of large-scale face-to-face CPD seminars to minimise the risk
BARNETHNHEEXEERAEE - of COVID-19 transmission in the community. Instead, the EAA
RREFEASBEEENT K BEE arranged a number of webinars and also 149 small-scale video
B ARRLZER LTS WERRT classes with adequate social distancing among participants to
4G RES/ NN R ERE - MEM meet the continuous learning needs of licensees.

ZHEARZHETHRBOERERE -

BE=FHEFEZLEILTE
CPD Activities in the Past Three Years

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

TR EEEHE S8 AR EEEE S8 AR SEENEHE S8 AR
Activity No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of
Providers Activities Enrolments Activities Enrolments Activities Enrolments
Et,—Q)EJ

287 7,675 241 10,524 265 13,342
EAA
HEMREER
Estate Agency 290 9,068 532 40,357 665 28,294
Trade
ot P g

5 156 25 1,801 15 1,173

Other Providers
o 582 16,899 798 52,682 945 42,809
Total

WMERBEER 2022/23F 1)
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Number of Activities
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700
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265 E b FikiE
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100
5 25 15
0 L h
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SHAX

Number of Enrolments
60,000

50,000 E B

Total

40,000

E HERIEER
Estate Agency Trade

30,000

EED
&= =7

20,000

D HA T s

10,000 Other Providers
7,675 1,801
156 1,173
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# il J2 <2021 F & A & # (FLFZ) (B FT)
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EHF -

BEoh - RfREm ENERR B RE R
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EHEEERKRELER -FR BEER
HEBWRT205HABEREE - KR
53,887 AR HE o

WERBESRE 2022/23F R

Highlights of activities
Cross-discipline seminars

To strengthen the licensees’ understanding of the importance
of personal data privacy and the new doxxing offences, the
EAA and the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data jointly organised a webinar for licensees on “Protection of
Personal Data Privacy for the Estate Agency Sector (Introduction
of the new doxxing offences)”. The Privacy Commissioner Ms Ada
CHUNG Lai-ling was the keynote speaker of the webinar who
explained the direct marketing regime and the doxxing offences
under the Personal Data (Privacy) (Amendment) Ordinance 2021.
The webinar attracted very good responses from the licensees
and a total of 321 participants attended.

Moreover, with an aim to foster cross-discipline exchanges
between estate agency trade practitioners and professionals
of other sectors as well as to ensure a balanced mix of CPD
activities to enrich licensees’ learning experiences, the EAA
also invited representatives of various professional institutes
and regulatory bodies to give talks to licensees, including the
Buildings Department; the Commerce and Economic Development
Bureau; the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department; the
Equal Opportunities Commission; the Hong Kong Green Building
Council; the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
the Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management; the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors; the Hong Kong Police Force;
the Independent Commission Against Corruption; the Rating
and Valuation Department; the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors; the Sales of First-hand Residential Properties Authority
and the Security Bureau. During the year, a total of 29 related
cross-discipline activities were held and these activities attracted
3,887 enrolments in total.
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A% E#E Forward-looking Approach in Knowledge Dissemination

CPD activities on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter
Terrorist Financing

To help licensees have a thorough understanding of the legal
requirements and the EAA’s guidelines relating to the anti-
money laundering (“AML”) and counter-terrorist financing (“CTF”)
legislation which encompasses the estate agency sector, and
keep abreast of the latest developments in this area, different
modes of CPD activities on AML/CTF were regularly conducted
throughout the year. During the year, 67 CPD activities were held
and they attracted 4,235 enrolments in total.

E-Learning programmes

In order to provide licensees with a convenient and flexible
learning option, the EAA has been producing e-Learning
programmes that focus on current and relevant topics.
Throughout the year, the EAA added four new e-Learning
programmes to its platform.

EAA’s e-Learning Programmes in the Past Three Years

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
EERM 2R EHHA 41 47 50*
Number of EAA’s e-Learning programmes
EERMALEEEHNR2EAR
Number of enrolments of EAA’s e-Learning 4,810 4,098 2,037
programmes

* —ERFMALERFTHEHP/LES * An outdated e-Learning programme was removed from the e-Learning
FTa LB - platform.
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Public Education and Trade Liaison

Consumer education

The EAA believes a long-term and yet continuous education
process is essential for building consumer awareness and thus
protecting the legitimate interests of consumers and the public
against those unfavourable practices in property transactions.
In 2022/23, the EAA persisted in fostering consumer protection
through education with a multi-pronged approach, disseminating
comprehensive and practical information to the public.

In light of the rising concern over purchasing uncompleted
properties outside of Hong Kong (“UPOH”), the EAA placed its
priority on reminding consumers of the inherent risks associated
with such purchases. Throughout the year, a number of online
promotion campaigns were launched to promote a series of
animated videos about the risks of purchasing UPOH with
the catchy slogan “To buy or not to buy non-local off-plan
properties? Assess the risks before you buy!” and 950,000 views
of the videos were recorded in the EAA’s YouTube channel.

Enhancing the public’s understanding of estate agents and their
work was another consumer education initiative. As such, the
EAA collaborated with a popular YouTube channel and launched
two feature videos about estate agents in October 2022. By
sharing positive stories of estate agents and the highlights of
their daily duties, the videos showcased the enthusiasm and the
professional knowledge the featured estate agents possess, with
a view to creating a better public image of estate agents.

In addition, following the issuance of the Practice Circular on the
proper handling of the letting of subdivided units (“SDU”) under
Part IVA of the Landlord and Tenant (Consolidation) Ordinance,
the EAA has produced a promotional leaflet summarising the
responsibilities of licensed estate agents in handling SDU
tenancies so as to further enhance the understanding of estate
agents in their roles and responsibilities. The leaflet was not only
distributed to trade associations for their onward dissemination
to their estate agency members but also available at the EAA’s
website and the Home Affairs Enquiry Centres in various districts.
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EEREE—RINEGMBEERBRINRERY
¥REBRHBERF

A number of online promotion campaigns were
launched to promote a series of animated videos
about the risks of purchasing uncompleted
properties outside of Hong Kong.

In addition to raising the public’s awareness of property related
subjects, the EAA also organised three public seminars on
property related themes during the year as a means of direct
knowledge sharing with the public. In July 2022, a public seminar
titled “Retrospect and Prospects of Hong Kong Property Market”
was held physically as one of the highlight events of the 25"
anniversary of the EAA. The seminar provided an overview of the
Hong Kong property market and the transformation of the estate
agency industry over the years. Another two public seminars
titled “Back to Basics: Purchasing Properties” and “Be vigilant
to the risks before purchasing off-plan properties outside Hong
Kong” were held in December 2022 and March 2023 respectively
in the format of live webinars, both sharing tips on buying
properties and appointing professional estate agents. Both
seminars received positive feedback from the public and together
they recorded over 88,000 views.

Media relations

The EAA attaches great importance to maintaining a close
relationship with the media to raise public awareness of the
EAA’s initiatives and efforts. During the year, the EAA issued 14
press releases and held two press conferences which gained
widespread media coverage. A total of six feature interviews
were also arranged for the EAA Chairman, CEO and senior
management of the EAA with major print and electronic media.

To further promote consumer-related information through mass
media channels, the EAA regularly contributes articles on current
topics relating to expected services of estate agents and property
transactions to the media. In 2022/23, the EAA contributed a
total of 41 articles to four print and online columns, namely, the
property magazine and website of Sing Tao Daily, the websites of
Hong Kong Economic Journal, Ming Pao Daily and South China
Morning Post. The EAA will continue to promote consumer-
related information through various mass media channels.
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Trade liaison and engagement

The EAA recognises the importance of effective communication
to maintain a cordial relationship with the trade and to gain its
support for the work of the EAA.

In 2022/23, the EAA hosted four trade liaison meetings. During
the meetings, issues of mutual concern were discussed, including
properties situated outside Hong Kong, tenancies of subdivided
units, anti-money laundering and many more. At the meetings,
the trade was also informed of the most updated initiatives of
the EAA to facilitate their better understanding of these issues
and promote higher standards of the trade’s practice. During the
year, the EAA also attended different trade events to maintain a
cordial relationship with the trade.

EEREEATEMSARTHBRITHES:
The EAA hosted regular liaison meetings with the representatives of major
trade associations.

From time to time, the EAA issues letters and reminders to
licensees in the form of email, SMS or special notices published
on the EAA’s website to alert them to certain requirements
relating to the estate agency practice, and reminders or new
measures from the Government. In 2022/23, a total of 16 letters
or notices were issued.

In addition, the EAA published four issues of newsletters for
licensees, namely Horizons, in the year to keep licensees abreast
of the EAA’s regulatory measures and our latest activities.

Apart from enhancing the professional standard of the estate
agents, the EAA is also dedicated to driving corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) among the estate agency trade through
organising various community outreach activities. As part of the
25™ anniversary celebration events, three sessions of the “Estate
Agents Elderly Service Day” were held in September 2022 which
engaged trade members to serve the elderly in Kowloon, the New
Territories and Hong Kong Island. Another CSR activity namely
“Estate Agents’ Children Service Day” was organised in March
2023 to show care and support to children from underprivileged
families. With overwhelming support from the trade, the outreach
activities successfully helped the industry to take a step further in
connecting and contributing to the community.
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On the other hand, the EAA also maintained a good relationship
with other stakeholders, including the Government, professional
institutions and other public bodies. As it is essential for estate
agents to keep informed of relevant government regulations and
new developments in the market, the EAA relayed the news
updates and information we received from various departments or
organisations such as Buildings Department, Companies Registry,
Competition Commission, Hong Kong Housing Authority, Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors, Hong Kong Monetary Authority,
Inland Revenue Department, Land Registry, Lands Department,
Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data, the
Police, Rating and Valuation Department, Security Bureau, Urban
Renewal Authority and Water Supplies Department, etc. to our
licensees through our website or email.

The vyear 2022 also marked the 25" anniversary of the
establishment of the EAA. In celebration of its silver jubilee, the
EAA organised a series of celebration events in the theme of
“Together we Establish, Advocate, and Achieve”, amongst which
was the 25" anniversary ceremony on 7 October 2022 officiated
by the Secretary for Housing, Ms Winnie HO Wing-yin, JP, and
the Chairman of the EAA, Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP,
with the presence of over 200 distinguished guests from various
stakeholders and sectors.

5 m

MW .
v 1 st

2

EEREMMKU25EAF  BERT —RIETER
[RAEE RBEEINEREE -

The EAA celebrated 25" anniversary of its

RAEE REEE
Together we Establish
Advocate and Achieve

establishment and organised a series of
celebration events in the theme of “Together we
Establish, Advocate, and Achieve”.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY
WERIBEED
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Estate Agents Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Estate Agents
Authority set out on pages 113 to 144, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the
statement of income and expenditure, statement of movements
in reserve and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of Estate Agents Authority as at 31
March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Estate Agents
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of Estate
Agents Authority in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Estate Agents Authority is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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B Z H A4 Independent Auditor’s Report

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Estate Agents Authority’s Responsibility
for the Financial Statements

Estate Agents Authority is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with  HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Estate Agents
Ordinance, and for such internal control as Estate Agents
Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Estate Agents Authority
is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Estate Agents Authority either intends to liquidate Estate Agents
Authority or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Estate Agents Authority is responsible for overseeing its financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 12 of the Estate
Agents Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Estate
Agents Authority’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by Estate Agents Authority.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of Estate Agents
Authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on Estate Agent Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause Estate Agents Authority to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with Estate Agents Authority regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 July 2023
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WXeEE xR Statement of Income and Expenditure
H E2023F3A31HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023
2023 2022
ihg=2 BT BT
NOTES HK$ HK$
WA Income
il = Licence fees 5 83,845,607 83,966,066
EZS B Examination fees 6 9,444,300 8,732,100
A 2 A Interest income 2,991,424 379,255
96,281,331 93,077,421
E U A Other income
Pl HEEREYEE Reversal of provision of
professional development
subsidy - 1,249,759
HIE A Sundry income 7 107,141 286,515
HEWE - R EEE W Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 3,100
107,141 1,539,374
S H Expenditure
ZEHE B & Auditor’s remuneration 130,000 130,000
NEHRBEHX Community education expenses 1,049,711 1,869,370
KEF - AE R EHMANT S Complaints, investigation and
disciplinary proceedings
expenses 86,447 74,076
M BERREBINE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 9 7,525,735 6,711,680
ERREEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 10 1,824,089 4,676,169
BMEERENBNER Equipment maintenance and
communication expenses 2,005,010 1,843,236
WEREFSH Estate agent card expenses 150,478 136,230
R & Insurance 1,447,329 1,496,800
BEaEIMELY Interest expense on lease liabilities 65,735 94,253
REZIET N Motor vehicle operating expenses 161,996 156,065
HAENEBERAS Office accommodation and related
expenses 2,224,099 3,399,123
E Postage 381,812 361,608
EDRI R B Printing and stationery 361,361 831,234
EEXERKER Professional service fees 557,980 778,800
NHEBEREREBEE Public relations and liaison 35,352 32,793
EERES Publicity and advertising 1,717,699 7,600
B TKA Staff costs
— e &OER - wages, salaries and
allowances 51,259,094 49,353,372
— BHE B HR - contributions to mandatory
provident fund scheme 1,432,164 1,445,456
EARGE Service fees for examinations 5,308,075 6,102,245
IR EMA X Training activity expenses 445,496 627,028
HAh A Other expenses 1,437,804 1,230,813
79,607,466 81,357,951
FNEER Surplus for the year 16,781,006 13,258,844
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B 35 AR R &R Statement of Financial Position
#R2023F3HA31H At 31 March 2023
2023 2022
ihg=2 BT BT
NOTES HK$ HK$
IERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WEENERE Property, plant and equipment 9 137,940,990 144,933,859
FHRREEE Right-of-use assets 10 2,352,581 4,176,670
BEWE  HRELHTEZ Deposits
B%EE 254,100 -
140,547,671 149,110,529
mENEE Current assets
FEWARTR ~ AN RIARIZ® Debtors, prepayments and
deposits 4,166,809 1,500,649
FEIE Time deposits 11 51,782,054 23,559,232
RITEsARIES Bank balances and cash 11 117,604,507 125,548,515
173,553,370 150,608,396
mEAaE Current liabilities
FEER R K FERTIE B Creditors and accruals 10,119,394 10,848,045
AdaE Contract liabilities 12 74,149,651 73,952,593
HEBE Lease liabilities 13 1,904,640 1,867,297
86,173,685 86,667,935
MENEEFAE Net current assets 87,379,685 63,940,461
WERERRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 227,927,356 213,050,990
e Reserve 227,368,495 210,587,489
EREEE Non-current liability
HEBRE Lease liabilities 13 558,861 2,463,501
227,927,356 213,050,990

|NFE113E 1448 2 B 7 7 & 722023
F7ACCHEMEREEESR2ERKE
HERREFZE  IHATREEE

WEF

WEREEER 2022/23F &

B
FIE T AR #

Simon SIU Chak-yu
CHAIRMAN

The financial statements on pages 113 to 144 were approved
and authorised for issue by the members of Estate Agents
Authority on 25 July 2023 and are signed on their behalf by:

Ruby HON Yuen-ping

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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FEESFH X Statement of Movements in Reserve
B ZE2023F3A31AILFE For The Year Ended 31 March 2023
Mt
Total
BT
HK$
w2021 ¢4 H81H At 1 April 2021 197,328,645
FRARK Surplus for the year 13,258,844
M2022%3 A31H At 31 March 2022 210,587,489
FNBHB Surplus for the year 16,781,006
R 202343 A31H At 31 March 2023 227,368,495
FHEENERIBEEE NS ERERHG Reserve represents retained cumulative surplus from the

operations of Estate Agents Authority.
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HERER Statement of Cash Flows
H £2023F3A31AILFE For The Year Ended 31 March 2023
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HK$
EIEEE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FRE R Surplus for the year 16,781,006 13,258,844
BTy B IEELFE Adjustments for:

2 A Interest income (2,991,424) (379,255)

HEABZMEX T Interest expense on lease liabilities 65,735 94,253

W s RREIE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 7,525,735 6,711,680

FREEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,824,089 4,676,169

HEME - a3 REE 2 s Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment = (3,100)
LEASHFHR LB S RE Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 23,205,141 24,358,591
FEURBRTN ~ FEN R IE LIZEE ) (Increase) decrease in debtors, prepayments

(38 hn) and deposits (1,306,591) 2,079,222
FENERZRLEETERE ML) (Decrease) increase in creditors and accruals (728,651) 1,149,225
FET R AT 2 5RIE OF ) 38 0 Decrease in amount due to Government = (2,099,512)
FEMEERR AR Decrease in professional development subsidy

payable - (606,323)
AR &N Increase in contract liabilities 197,058 1,606,091
EEEBMERESFE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 21,366,957 26,487,294
REEE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FETHER Placement of time deposits (51,782,054) (23,559,232)
IREEBFER Withdrawal of time deposits 23,559,232 35,880,903
BEME  HWENERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5632,866) (65,426,2306)
2 U FE Interest received 1,377,755 423,575
HEME -  BREREZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

Fr{8 218 plant and equipment = 3,100
WEEE (TR BIRE F5E NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (27,377,933) (52,677,890)
RMETEMARS CASH USED IN A FINANCING ACTIVITY
XNHEEAE Repayment of lease liabilities (1,933,032) (5,234,041)
ReERREEEWORD) NET DECREASE IN CASH AND

S lIDER= CASH EQUIVALENTS (7,944,008)  (31,424,637)
FUNRERRSESED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 125,548,515 156,973,152
FEHBESMASEZED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

END OF THE YEAR 117,604,507 125,548,515
Re kRS EEDEHIT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS:
WITHBRER S Bank balances and cash 117,604,507 125,548,515

HWEREEER 2022/23F i)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

1.

General

Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”) was established with the
principal functions of promoting integrity and competence
of estate agents and issuing estate agents’ licences under
the Estate Agents Ordinance dated 29 May 1997 (date
of enactment). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of EAA is 7/F, E-Trade Plaza, 24
Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
which is the same as the functional currency of EAA.

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, EAA has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the
financial statements:

BMoERZ2E
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
M - BB RERE - BTERERRINMEHRE

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use

EEEEH — BAKA

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BB IS HE %R 2018-2020 7 FE ok

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on EAA’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial
statements.
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2. ERFIIREBEBITIZE 2. Application of New and Amendments
B EHREER ([HFB to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
M HRELER]) &) Standards (“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

CEAEERER ZHITRES
A2 ERBMBHREER

&

REBLKEMBERER A EE
[& I % 12 Bl & AR A T B B A0 HE )
AEBNBBMBRELERHFT
RAERT R

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
EAA has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

AR BHmEEAENT7R(BIEH20204F RIBE K RABRIISET
10 AE 2022 F 2022 FEMAIER])

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 and  Insurance Contracts'
February 2022 Amendments to HKFRS 17)

EREGHHmEEAE 1055 & 285

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

REEREMENTHAERARZENEERESHTE®
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

ARG ERFE 16 FSEI
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BAGETERIE 157 (ERTA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

BBGFTEE 1 FRIEFT A
Amendments to HKAS 1
BB ERE IR R

FEMHRELENEHREF 2RIEFT A

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BB ENESRIEITA
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERIFE 1255
Amendments to HKAS 12

! R2023F1 1A K 2 B A B A F
EHI AR -

2 M2024FE1 1R 2 B BB W E
EHIR AR -

8 RETEBIZ2ERAANFEHHB
ARl o

EERERERPEMABAES
MG mEERHETREFT R ZE
BB E Y8 AR RIRE
AEAARHRRZGELEERY
@,

WEREEER 2022/23F &

Associate or Joint Venture®

ERMEzAEARE"

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®

KEBEIBEARDIERBEERYESREE S5 (20204F)
ZHREET

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Mi#sR % 2 IERB A E®

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®

G BREE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

GrHE TR

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

RE—-XPGRELZEAERBBEEBETHE'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

The management of EAA anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact in current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Estate Agents
Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, EAA takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases” and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Revenue from contracts with customers

EAA recognises income when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by EAA’s performance as EAA
performs;

° EAA’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as EAA performs; or

° EAA’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to EAA and EAA has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
services.

A contract liability represents EAA’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which EAA has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from
the customer.

A contract liability relating to the same contract is
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Income from licence fees

Income from licence fees is recognised over the licence
fees period by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation, as the
licensees simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by EAA’s performance as EAA performs.

Income from examination fees

Income from examination fees is recognised at a point
in time at the date of examination when the service is
delivered to candidates.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best
depict EAA’s performance in transferring control of goods
or services.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, EAA assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Leases (continued)

EAA as a lessee

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by EAA; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by EAA in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

EAA presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, EAA recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, EAA uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:
o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects EAA exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Leases (continued)

EAA as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

EAA remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever
the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

EAA presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

EAA accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, EAA remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

EAA accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, EAA
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and deprecation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, EAA has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), EAA estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.



FTESTHER®
ReRBSZEY

REBRRKZINWIRITERK
HeplRk@Ris ERTEAS
NERER TERXEERS
MEMBREHRTBNARETE
BEZRTES  RO)BEEFEY
BREH(-RRIBAL=MEA
HAT)  AERERSENTE
B2 BEEEPARIRZER
PURE-HeFTEDFERR
MRS AE MIEARKRESL
HAith 2 o

nEeRERME HAe ke
FEVERLXAAETEZRE M
HeHED -

EWMTR

EEERKATEAMNGXHE
WOk HIAZREENERA
B-FMAEHTABEEXNHEEN
TREENARS A HEEERR
REBUEMHR - EH77 A BE 2k
EHRERLRAATIHED FE
MEEREASEEERN SR
BEEEE -

BREEPANELENEWRIE
REBEMBERES ERNE15HE[E
FeOR=E]INIFHE  eMEE
keBBEVIZEAFEERNE -
ABEXETEREEREREA
EMEEREEEXRIAAR REKX
ERERNZATREELESHME
B AFEESF AL (RE
RIBRME) °

81 % ¥k &R Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash presented on the statement of
financial position include: (a) cash, which comprises of cash
on hand and demand deposits, excluding bank balances
that are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in such
balances no longer meeting the definition of cash; and (b)
cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liability are recognised when
EAA becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liability are initially measured
at fair value except for receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liability
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liability, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that economic benefits will flow into EAA and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortisation cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

EAA recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
(“ECL”) on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment is
done based on EAA’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all instruments, EAA measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, EAA
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, EAA compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, EAA
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
EAA presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when past
due, unless EAA has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

EAA regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, EAA considers an
event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
EAA, in full.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

EAA writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under EAA’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
the statement of income and expenditure.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to EAA in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
EAA expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

EAA derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If EAA neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, EAA recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If EAA retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, EAA continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in the statement of income and expenditure.

Financial liability

Financial liability is classified in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definition of a financial liability.

Financial liability

Financial liability (including creditors) is subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liability

EAA derecognises financial liability when, and only when,
EAA’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees.

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)
Employee benefits (continued)
Employee benefits - provident fund obligations

EAA operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held in a separate trustee — administered fund. Both EAA
and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employee’s relevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(2022: HK$1,500) per employee per month. EAA’s
contributions to the MPF scheme are expensed as incurred.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying EAA’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management had made the
following judgments that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment assessment of debtors

Debtors are measured at initial recognition at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
the statement of income and expenditure when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining individual allowances, EAA has considered
that detailed procedures have been in place to monitor
this risk. In determining whether impairment assessment
of HKFRS 9 is required, EAA takes into consideration the
aging status, the likelihood of collection and the estimated
discounted future cash flows. Specific allowance is made
for debtors that are unlikely to be collected. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, allowances
may be required.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment assessment of debtors (continued)

EAA assesses the internal credit ratings for debtors. Except
for those which had been determined as credit impaired
under HKFRS 9 the ECL of which is assessed individually,
debtors are grouped based on internal credit rating and
the ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix. The provision rates are based on EAA’s
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and changes in
considered.

disclosed in note 15.

5. Licence Fees

looking information that is

historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed

the forward-looking information are

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and EAA’s

debtors are

2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HK$
IR E B Total licence fees 83,845,607 83,966,066
6. EZHE 6. Examination Fees

2023 2022
BT AT
HK$ HK$

HMEREBREXEER Estate agents and salespersons
=z qualifying examinations 9,444,300 8,732,100

134 ERBEESHE 2022/234
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MIEW A 7. Sundry Income
BEERKIBEZERNERERE EAA had successfully applied for the Government’s
L IR E B2 Matching Grant Scheme for Skills Upgrading under the
BB AREMEEIEE K Anti-epidemic Fund to provide two series of trainings to
g AREEIEZINRZAEE R licensees. The Government would bear 75% of the total
75%  E825%8|H B AE - & cost of the approved training courses, while the remaining
M1 15 B SR A2 5 B 722021467 A H 25% would be borne by EAA. Both training courses
2 WHR2022FE6 8 5845 commenced in July 2021 and completed in June 2022.
18 8. Taxation
BIECRIE B £871% - EE B EAA is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under section
ERREMEBFER - 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
W - HEREE 9. Property, Plant and Equipment
HELHR
BY HENERS RE BRREE By &3
Leasehold Furniture
land and Leasehold Motor and
buildings improvements vehicles fixtures  Equipment Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
KA COST
R2021E4 1R At 1 April 2021 75,991,930 5,730,914 646,982 9,370,282 19,697,017 111,337,125
NE Additions 63,622,060 2,548,887 - 6,999,075 948,714 74,118,736
i Disposal - (5,730,914) - (1,176,202) (707,486) (7,614,602)
R2022E3 31 H At 31 March 2022 139,613,990 2,548,887 646,982 15,193,155 19,838,245 177,841,259
NE Additions - - - 47,300 485,566 532,866
R2023%3 311 At 31 March 2023 139,613,990 2,548,887 646,982 15,240,455 20,323,811 178,374,125
e DEPRECIATION
R2021F4F1H At 1 April 2021 4,513,078 5,230,424 242,619 5,576,261 18,247,940 33,810,322
EREE Provided for the year 2,686,243 976,549 194,094 2,318,429 536,365 6,711,680
s Eliminated on disposal - (5,730,914) - (1,176,202) (707,486) (7,614,602
R2022E3 31 H At 31 March 2022 7,199,321 476,059 436,713 6,718,488 18,076,819 32,907,400
FREE Provided for the year 2,792,280 921,257 194,095 3,002,308 615,795 7,525,735
202353311 At 31 March 2023 9,991,601 1,397,316 630,808 9,720,796 18,692,614 40,433,135
REE NET BOOK VALUES
1202353311 At 31 March 2023 129,622,389 1,151,571 16,174 5,519,659 1,631,197 137,940,990
R2022E3 A 31 H At 31 March 2022 132,414,669 2,072,828 210,269 8,474,667 1,761,426 144,933,859
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HE+THWLETFT 2%

Property, Plant and Equipment continued)

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings

2%

THEMEEE 20% skizfRE Leasehold improvements 20% or over the period
FHR (W of the lease term if it
REF) is less than 5 years
AE 30% Motor vehicles 30%
EMEEE 20% Furniture and fixtures 20%
B 20% 2 30% Equipment 20% to 30%
10. FRAREEE 10. Right-of-use Assets
HE WAE
LY ®=E W
Leased Office
properties equipment Total
BT BT BIT
HK$ HK$ HK$
M2023F3A31H As at 31 March 2023
REa%E Carrying amount 2,240,536 112,045 2,352,581
R2022%3A31H As at 31 March 2022
FRE®R Carrying amount 3,980,577 196,093 4,176,670
H#ZE2023%3H31H For the year ended
LFE 31 March 2023
WES Depreciation charge 1,740,041 84,048 1,824,089
BZ2022FE3A31H  For the year ended
LEFE 31 March 2022
ES Depreciation charge 4,592,121 84,048 4,676,169
2023 2022
BT i
HK$ HK$
FARBEmMRLD Total cash outflow for leases during the year
RE B (1,933,032) (5,234,041)
FREREEENTNE SF Additions to right-of-use assets during the
year - 5,220,123

WEREEER 2022/23F &
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10. Right-of-use Assets (continuea)

11.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, EAA leases offices and
office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 3 years to 5 years, but may
have extension and termination options. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
EAA applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

Bank Balances and Cash and Time
Deposits

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by EAA and
short-term bank deposits with remaining tenure of 32 to
67 days (2022: 20 to 67 days) at prevailing market interest
rates ranging from 0.5% to 5.07% per annum (2022: 0.01%
to 0.3% per annum).

As at 31 March 2023, a fund of HK$89,779,095 (2022:
HK$67,749,796) was maintained for the plan, if any, to
acquire further office accommodation or to pursue other
projects in future. The amount of the fund is determined at
the discretion of EAA after setting aside sufficient fund for
sustaining its operation.

Time deposit comprises short-term bank deposits with
remaining tenure of ranging from 111 to 319 days (2022:
138 days) at prevailing market interest rate of 4% to 4.3%
per annum (2022: 0.55% per annum).

EAA considers that the carrying amounts of these assets
approximate their fair values.
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12. 6N AE 12. Contract Liabilities
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HK$
RIERR BB Deferred licence fee income 70,220,380 69,984,347
2 U FR AR BB A T Licence application fees received 3,929,271 3,968,246
74,149,651 73,952,593
R Licence fees
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HK$
EHRNERE Licence fee income recognised that was
WA BEEFIE included in the contract liability balance at
EHBEER the beginning of the year 57,354,118 55,534,622

RE®EH R 13,051,874/8 7T
MELEERE WA (2022F :
12,680,229/ L) B~ fE | &
HAREB+-ZEARNER B UWE
BRRFEREAMERERR
EEEMIMORE ERXRS
HARMERES  MARZE -

At the end of the reporting period, deferred licence
fee income amounting to HK$13,051,874 (2022:
HK$12,630,229) were not expected to be realised within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Licence
application fees received represent amounts paid by estate
agents applying for the licences which were still being
processed but not yet approved at the end of the reporting
period.

13. i EE8 & 13. Lease Liabilities
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FENMEEaRE Lease liabilities due:
—FE2ZNA Within one year 1,904,640 1,867,297
—F P F o BTHBBME  Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 558,861 1,904,640
AL BREB®AS  Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years - 558,861
2,463,501 4,330,798
B T ZEAREBIEIE  Less: Amounts due for settlement within
ENeRE(ERESE twelve months (shown under current
ETHER) liabilities) (1,904,640) (1,867,297)
E+ZEAEIHN Amounts due for settlement after twelve
et &5 months 558,861 2,463,501

WEREEER 2022/23F &
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14. Capital Risk Management

EERMNEARNTERKRBKILIA
KFFREMEHGHEEZ HEX
ERERREREE RENFE
B - 1T BE T BN IR T i E AR
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EEREMRSTERELEAR
B UEREERERAENESR
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EEMBRETTHIRBEER -5
ERBLREANESNGRHE
g - B —FEE  AEFEA
BREBEXKAMAZIAREMIE
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WERESFAREE RN E
RE - EERTE MR E R
ENFE UBRZSEUAEE

Fk e

EAA’s capital comprises primarily the surplus reserve fund
accumulated since its establishment, and its objective when
managing the capital is to ensure that EAA will be able
to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
promote integrity and competence of estate agents.

EAA regularly reviews and manages its capital to ensure
adequacy for both the operational and capital needs. EAA
operates a zero distribution policy with regard to surpluses
generated. EAA maintains a fund for the plan, if any, to
acquire further office accommodation or to pursue other
projects in future after setting aside sufficient fund for
sustaining EAA’s operation.

EAA charges annual licence fees on the estate agents. EAA
regularly reviews the need to increase licence fees to ensure
operational needs are fully covered.

15. 2T A

15. Financial Instruments

a. BRI EEHA a. Categories of financial instruments
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HK$
TRMEE - Financial assets:
RSN ARST 2 2 &R & E  Financial assets at amortised cost
= Sundry receivables 2,833,359 164,584
EftiZe Deposit paid 802,891 580,621
FHFER - RBITE% Time deposits, bank balances
&k and cash 169,386,561 149,107,747
173,022,811 149,852,952
cHAE: Financial liability:
L E ) N Amortised costs
JE 1< BR 5K Creditors 10,119,394 10,848,045
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15. Financial Instruments (continuea)

Financial
policies

risk management objectives and

EAA’s financial instruments include sundry receivables,
deposit paid, time deposits, bank balances and cash
and creditors. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented in timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Cash flow interest rate risk

EAA is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets. Interest bearing financial assets are mainly
balances with banks which are all short term in nature.
Therefore, any future variation in interest rates will not
have a significant impact on the results of EAA.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to EAA. EAA’s exposure of its
counterparties are continuously monitored, reviewed
and approved.

In order to minimise the credit risk, EAA makes
adequate impairment losses for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, EAA considers that EAA’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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15. Financial Instruments (continuea)

SREREEEERBE (&) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
EERE (&) Credit risk (continued)
ETEWEINIERZES In determining the ECL for debtors, EAA has taken
Tg B EERThEsnN B into account the historical default experience and
TEBRAIEER - EEHB forward-looking information, as appropriate. EAA
E ERBFENRBERM has considered the consistently low historical default
METTEE B E M FE W rate and concluded that credit risk is inherent in
WEzZERM BT RE— EAA’s sundry receivables and deposit paid. EAA has
&3V E H b E U B B 1) 46 RE further assessed that sundry receivables have not
RETRAEREZERR XE had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
whn - BEAARRTSE K - recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
A e I R (B o therefore, no impairment has been recognised.
#H £2023F3H31H K2022 During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
ESH 1B IEFE - RIETEH material impairment allowance on deposit paid was
cEEBRESG TERS N provided based on the ECL assessment.
RERBEERNREREE -
THERERSHESZEE The credit risk on time deposits and liquid funds is
BEIAK RRARZX S HF limited because the counterparties are banks with
RERGTFEBZE ZRIT - good reputation.
EERRNNEERBRTRMA EAA’s internal credit risk grading assessment
—|—§|J KRR AR B comprises the following categories:
o 5815 B PR 5l SREE
Internal credit rating Description Financial assets
1T REY5VFAZEHNRARRE  AUWSEFR@ERERE T EABBEEESE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does 12-month ECL
not have any past-due amounts
BERZE KERIHAZEEMARTNIAREBENNETR - TZEABHREEEE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually 12-month ECL
settle after due date
F5E RBEANIK 2 BRSOV BETR - FERBREMEHRBL 2HBHEEHR -
PREAE N mIEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL -
risk since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
&8 EREBEREELREERE AHH%EF@%EF?E -
=5
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL -
impaired credit-impaired
G EH&T%,EEﬁ*)\ﬁ%ﬂﬂéﬁﬁﬁzl%’&&?”)ﬁlﬁ BEWRA] FIE#H
0] 7 2B
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
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15. €f T A

b. EREMEEBRBREE#E) b.
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ETEREEERNE) ME

15. Financial Instruments (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures
of EAA’s financial assets which are subject to ECL

iR EERBR : assessment:
t=fAE
HMBEERR ABEETR LHRBGERR REAR
External Internal 12-month or
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
2023 2022
BT B
HK$ HKS
RBERANENSRER
Financial assets at amortised cost
Eth W TR Bf7(Ma) T_EARBEEER 2,833,359 164,584
Sundry receivables N/A Performing (note )~ 12-month ECL
BfffEe TiEA Bi1(MEa) T EARBEEER
Deposit paid N/A Performing (note )~ 12-month ECL 802,891 580,621
THER  ROEBRRAS Aa3ZA3  TEA T EARSEERE 169,386,561 149,107,747
Time deposits, bank balances and cash  Aa3to A3 N/A 12-month ECL
fEE - Note:

@ HAMEERBREEMS @ &
& 5 {5 i H ) A R MR K

Eﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬂ%éﬂ LA BT 14
BYREREZEERBRREHE
E8mn -

REELEE

Eﬁﬁ%gﬁ%ﬁm@ﬁzﬁ@
REERRKREREEE KF
EREERZESR HHE
Eﬁﬂﬁi&mu@ﬁi\ fi*ﬁ
ERVEE 2RSE ©RER
ERER-BEEREEES
BEFTHARBARSER
mﬁw ERREME N

E. EE//IL@JE@@ ﬁ °

TRENEERFTESR
BEREEGRZHTAOR
HE -ZXDREEERA
WERXHeRABEIRT
FHRE URRERMAEE
ZARUBBRESRE °

WEREBEESR 2022/23F i

(a) For the purpose of internal credit risk management, EAA
uses the financial information of the past-due information
of sundry receivables and deposit paid to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with management of EAA, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the management of EAA’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
Management of EAA manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserve and continuously
monitors the forecast and actual cash flows.

The following table details EAA’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which EAA can
be required to pay.
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15. Financial Instruments (continuea)

SREREEEERBE (&) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
HEELEE (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
il £ AERRE
BRA = 0230% 1EAZIE 125% REEHE REE
Weighted
average Total
effective 0-30 1 month - 1 -5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate days 1 year years  cash flows amount
B BT BT BT BT
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2023 % 2023
A BRS% Creditors - 9,989,394 130,000 - 10,119,394 10,119,394
HERE Lease liabilities 2 161,086 1,771,946 560,037 2,493,069 2,463,501
10,150,480 1,901,946 560,037 12,612,463 12,582,895
2022 2022
R Creditors - 10,718,045 130,000 - 10,848,045 10,848,045
HE&RE Lease liabilities 2 161,086 1,771,946 2,493,069 4,426,101 4,330,798
10,879,131 1,901,946 2,493,069 15,274,146 15,178,843
NEEE c. Fair values
SRHEERSHABEIAF The fair values of financial assets and financial

EBE RMARS t%ﬁﬁ
EERMZEBRAEE

EERAR NRUBHRRIR

BERAAENEREEN
TRAEBEZHEmMEEEAQYF
BEMELD -

liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

EAA considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised

cost in the financial statements approximate their

corresponding fair values.
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16.RETHELENAEEBL
¥ iR

TRHFLEERKEMEEDN
BEEZY ETERERSMIER
TEY MEIBAELENEE
RREREIARAKXRERES/R
EERNRAERERTODERRE
BRETHRSRENEE -

A A A A

16. Reconciliation of A Liability Arising
from Financing Activity

The table below details changes in EAA’s liability arising
from financing activity, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liability arising from financing activity is that
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in EAA’s statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activity.

HEAE

Lease

liabilities

BT

HK$

MR2021F4 81H At 1 April 2021 4,250,463
BLEIRE N Financing cash flow (5,234,041)
B Interest expense 94,253
EIIMFEE New lease entered 5,220,123
M2022FE3 A31H At 31 March 2022 4,330,798
BEE LS Financing cash flow (1,983,032)
FEZH Interest expense 65,735
R 202343 A31H At 31 March 2023 2,463,501
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